City Hall Council Chambers
1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 & www.coachella.org

AGENDA

OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
CitYy COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA,
THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT,
COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY,
COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION,
COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

July 10, 2019
5:00 p.m. Closed Session
6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting

CALL TO ORDER: — 5:00 P.M.

RoLL CALL:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

“At this time the Council/Board/Corporation/Authority may announce any items being pulled from the
agenda or continued to another date or request the moving of an item on the agenda.”

PUBLIC COMMENTS (CLOSED SESSION ITEMS):

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION:

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Significant Exposure to Litigation, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)/(e)(1)
Two (2) potential cases

b. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Initiation of Litigation, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4)
One (1) potential case

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING: — 6:00 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS:




Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA July 10, 2019
Page 2

9. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:

a. Special Meeting Minutes of a Coachella City Council Study Session held on June 20, 2019.

b. Regular Meeting Minutes of June 26, 2019, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection
District, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and
Governmental Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to
the Coachella Redevelopment Agency.

10. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS:

None.

11.  WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

12. CONSENT CALENDAR:

(It 1s recommended that Consent items be acted upon simultaneously unless separate discussion and/or
action are requested by a Council Member or Member of the Audience.)

a. Voucher Listings- FY 2018/19 and FY 2019/20 Expenditures as of July 10, 2019, $559,576.02.

b. Ordinance No. 1140 amending various sections of Title 17 (Zoning) of the Coachella Municipal
Code in order to amend zoning regulations regarding commercial Cannabis Activity Facilities
and Retail Cannabis Businesses in order to expand the allowable locations and increase the
number of allowable retailers, modify current zoning regulations for Cannabis Activity
Facilities, and make conforming amendments. (Second Reading).

c. Professional Services Agreement with NRO Engineering Amendment #5 in the amount of
$150,000 for Engineering Plan Check Services

d. Authorize the City Manager to enter into an Agreement with Municode Meetings at an annual
fee of $6,400.00 to replace the discontinued Sire Technologies for the purchase, implementation,
and training of Online Meeting and Agenda Management Services

e. Approve a Community Based Grant to The Bianca Rae Foundation in the Amount of $1,000.00
to Support its Rae of Hope Retreats for Middle School Children

f. Authorize Coachella Library facility use rental permit fee waiver for the Cesar Chavez
Elementary School Mariachi Band Juvenil Program.

g. Approve a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Youth Sports Association in the Amount of
$1,000 to Support its Women's Soccer Team



Agenda

Page 3

13.

14.

15.

16.

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA July 10, 2019

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):

a.

Designation of Voting Delegate and Alternates to the League of California Cities Annual
Conference.

Approve appropriating $200,000 from facilities development impact fees for the Coachella
Permit Center equipment and furnishings.

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):

a.

Luxtor Luxury RV Storage

1) Resolution No. 2019-38, Approving Environmental Assessment 18-06 for the Luxtor Luxury
RV Storage which Includes Conditional Use Permit No. 313, Architectural Review No. 18-
13, and Tentative Parcel Map 37670. Mr. Steve Henry (Applicant). (APN 603-300-011)

2) Resolution No. 2019-39, Approving Conditional Use Permit No. 313 and Architectural
Review 18-13 to Allow the Construction of a New Indoor Air Conditioned RV Storage
Facility Consisting of 157 Parking Garages to Include A 5,790 Sq. Ft. RV Repair Shop, a
4,270 Sq. Ft. Office Building, a Managers Unit With Attached Two Car Garage And All Off-
Site Improvements On 6.09 Acres Of Partially-Improved Land In The M-S (Manufacturing
Service) Zone. (APN 603-300-011) Mr. Steve Henry is the Applicant.

3) Resolution No. 2019-40, Approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 37670 for the Subdivision of
Approximately 6.09 Acres of Land into 157 Air-Space Condominium Lots on Property
Located at 49-751 Oates Lane. Mr. Steve Henry, Applicant.

Adopt Resolution No. 2019-41, authorizing the collection of residential solid waste rates for
fiscal year 2019/2020 through the County of Riverside Tax Roll, at the same time and manner as
general taxes, and approve fiscal year 2019/2020 Solid Waste Rates.

Resolution No. 2019-36 authorizing the establishment of an annual special tax for City of
Coachella Community Facilities District No. 2005-1 (Law Enforcement, Fire and Paramedic
Services) and Annexation Areas Thereto for Fiscal Year 2019/2020.

PuBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

“The public may address the City Council/Board/Corporation/Authority on any item of interest to the
public that is not on the agenda, but is within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your
comments to three (3) minutes.”

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

a.

b.

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees.

City Manager's Comments.



Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA July 10, 2019
Page 4

17. ADJOURNMENT:

iAny writing or documents pertaining to an open session item provided to a majority of the City Council less than
72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at the front counter of
City Hall located at 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, CA during normal business hours.

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES



ITEM 9.a.






ITEM 9.a.

City Hall Council Chambers
1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 & www.coachella.org

MINUTES

OF A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE
CiTYy CouNcIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA,
THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT,
COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY,
COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION,
COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

June 20, 2019
8:00 a.m.

CALL TO ORDER:

The Special Meeting of the City Council of the City of Coachella was called to order at 9:08 a.m. in the
Council Chamber at City Hall by Mayor Hernandez.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by City Manager Bill Pattison.

RoLL CALL:

Present: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez, and
Mayor Hernandez.

Absent: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto and Councilmember Gonzalez.

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):

a. Authorize approval of alcohol to be consumed on public property located at 1500 Sixth Street,
Coachella CA 92236 for a City event on June 24, 2019.

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation.
Made by: Mayor Pro Tem Martinez

Seconded by: Councilmember Bautista

Approved: 4-0, by the following roll call vote:



ITEM 9.a. CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA June 20, 2019

Page 2
AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Mayor
Hernandez
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto and Councilmember Gonzalez
5. CLOSED SESSION:

City Attorney Henry Wells asked Council to convene into Closed Session at 5:03 p.m. to discuss the
following:

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING EXISTING LITIGATION pursuant
to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1).
Name of case: City of Coachella v. Thomas, Superior Court case number PSC 1504858

b. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING EXISTING LITIGATION pursuant
to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1).
Name of case: Genevieve Thomas v. City of Coachella Superior Court case number PSC
1801086

6. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS:

City Council reconvened into open session at 10:21 p.m. City Attorney Wells stated with regards to
Items 5.a. and 5.b., upon a motion by Mayor Hernandez and a second by Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and
with a 3-0 vote, the City Council approved a Settlement Agreement with the Estate of Genevieve
Thomas, through its executor, regarding the property located at1639/1645/1647, 1657 and 1667 Sixth
Street, in Coachella. The Parties have agreed, with no admission of liability by any Party, to enter into a
complete and final settlement of all disputes, alleged claims in this matter and differences between them
with respect to the Action.

7. ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business to come before the City Council and the Agencies, Mayor Hernandez
adjourned the meeting at 9:15 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

QUL ANNsO~

Andrea Carranza, NmcC
Deputy City Clerk




ITEM 9.b.






ITEM 9.b.

City Hall Council Chambers
1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 < www.coachella.org

MINUTES

OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
CiTY CouNcIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA,
THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT,
COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY,
COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION,
COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

June 26, 2019
6:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER:

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Coachella was called to order at 6:02 p.m. in the
Council Chamber at City Hall by Mayor Hernandez.

RoOLL CALL:

Present: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez, and
Mayor Hernandez.

Absent: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

It was noted for the record that Councilmember Beaman Jacinto is on vacation and her absence is
excused.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

There were no modifications to the agenda.

Motion: To approve the agenda as presented.
Made by: Councilmember Bautista

Seconded by: Mayor Pro Tem Martinez
Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by City Manager Bill Pattison.

-



ITEM 9.b.

Page 2

5.

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA June 26, 2019

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:

a.

Regular Meeting Minutes of May 22, 2019, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection
District, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and
Governmental Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to
the Coachella Redevelopment Agency.

Motion: To approve the minutes as presented.
Made by: Mayor Pro Tem Martinez

Seconded by: Councilmember Gonzalez
Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS:

a.

Recognition of outgoing Parks and Recreation Commissioner Denise Delgado — Continued due
to her absence.

Recognition of outgoing Planning Commissioner and Utility Users Tax Citizens Oversight
Committee Member Mario Zamora — Continued due to his absence.

Recognition of outgoing Planning Commissioner and Economic Development | Planning Sub-
Committee Member Mike Etheridge

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

None.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

a.

Voucher Listings — Manual Checks/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2018-19 Expenditures as of
June 26, 2019, $4,382,466.83.

Ordinance No. 1138 approving Change of Zone No. 18-03 to add the RC (Retail - Cannabis)
Overlay Zone to the existing C-G (General Commercial) zone amending the Official Zoning
Map for property located at the southwest corner of Grapefruit Boulevard and 6th Street. HOTN/
Sinsemilla, Applicant. (Second Reading)

Authorize City Manager to execute Agreement between County of Riverside and City of
Coachella for Household Hazardous Waste Collection Program.

Authorize award of Amendment No. 1 to the Maintenance Agreement between the City of
Coachella and Siemens Mobility, Inc., approving an additional one year term extension.

Authorize fee waiver for the Friends of the Coachella Library facility use rental permit.



ITEM 9.b.

Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWAI/SA-RDA e —oy —eme
Page 3

f. Investment Report - March 2019, April 2019, May 2019.

g. Authorization for a Letter of Intent Submittal to the Desert Healthcare Foundation for Two

Outdoor Fitness Gyms, Shade Structures, and Eight Drinking and Water Bottle-Filling Stations
at Central Park and Rancho Las Flores Park I1.

h. Authorization for a Community Based Grant to Organizacion en California de Lideres
Campesinas, Inc., in the Amount of $500.00 to Help Defray Travel Expenses.

i Approval of a Community Based Grant to Desert United Soccer Club in the Amount of $1,000
to Defray the Cost of Travel to the California Regional League Soccer Tournament.

J- Annual Purchase of Billboard Advertisement from Lamar Advertising.

k. Approval of a Community Based Grant to the Animal Samaritans in the Amount of $1,000.00 to
Support Its Adoption Alliance Animal Rescue Program.

I Approval of a Community Based Grant to About Families in the Amount of $1,000.00 to
Support Parenting Classes for Families Raising Children

m. Resolution No. 2019-37 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Standard Agreement with
the State of California Department of General Services for Grant Funds Awarded in the Amount
of $65,088 through the Alcohol Policing Partnership Program Administered by the Department
of Alcoholic Beverage Control

n. Amendment No. 1 to Professional Service Agreement with Southern California Soils and
Testing (SCST) to provide Materials testing and Inspection Service for Various City Capital
Projects.

0. Authorization for the City Manager to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with BSK

Associates (BSK) for Laboratory Services in the Amount of $120,000.00.

p. Authorization for the City Manager to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with Olson
Engineering System, INC, for Professional Engineering Services in the Amount not to Exceed
$25,000.00. City Project W-40 - Whitewater Wash Bridge Pipeline at Dillon Road Repair.

g Approval of a Community Based Grant to the American Youth Soccer Association in the
Amount of $1,000 to Help Defray the Travel Expenses to Participate in the National Games in
Honolulu, Hawaii.

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation, Consent Calendar Items 8.a. through 8.q.
Made by: Mayor Pro Tem Martinez

Seconded by: Councilmember Bautista

Approved: 4-0, by the following roll call vote:



ITEM 9.b.

e — CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/ICEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA June 26, 2019
Page 4

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez

and Mayor Hernandez.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto
0. NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):

a. Appointment of new Members and Alternate Member to the Coachella Planning Commission.

Action: Each member of Council nominated one member to the Planning Commission. The
staggered terms for the new Commissioners will match the term of the appointing
Councilmember.

Nominated By Nominee for Planning Commissioner
Councilmember Bautista: Ruben Gonzalez
Councilmember Beaman Jacinto: = Sahara Huazano (via absentee proxy
vote)
Councilmember Gonzalez: Miguel Navarrete
Mayor Pro Tem Martinez: Javier Soliz
Mayor Hernandez: Stephanie Virgen
Motion: To appoint as Planning Commissioners:

¢ Ruben Gonzalez, with a term end date of December 31, 2020
Sahara Huazano, with a term end date of December 31, 2022
Miguel Navarrete, with a term end date of December 31, 2022
Javier Soliz with a term end date of December 31, 2020
Stephanie Virgen, with a term end date of December 31, 2020

To appoint as Alternate Planning Commissioner:
e Miguel Leal, with a term end date of December 31, 2022

Made by: Mayor Hernandez

Seconded by: Mayor Pro Tem Martinez

Approved: 4-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem
Martinez and Mayor Hernandez

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

-10-



Minutes
Page 5

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA

ITEM 9.b.

Appointment of three new Commissioners and an Alternate Commissioner to the Coachella
Parks and Recreation Commission.

Motion:

Made by:

Seconded by:

Approved:
AYES:
NOES:

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

To appoint as Parks and Recreation Commissioners:

e J. Carlos Ayala, with a term expiration date of December 31, 2020
e Javier Figueroa, with a term expiration date of December 31, 2021
e Rosario Sabala, with a term expiration date of December 31, 2021

To appoint as Alternate Parks and Recreation Commissioner
e Liliana Serrato, with a term expiration date of December 31, 2022

Mayor Hernandez
Mayor Pro Tem Martinez
4-0, by the following roll call vote:

Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem
Martinez and Mayor Hernandez

None.

None.

Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

Sponsorship Request by the 2019 Official Latino Film and Arts Festival.

Motion:

Made by:

Seconded by:

Failed:
AYES:
NOES:

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Motion:

Made by:

Seconded by:

Approved:
AYES:
NOES:

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

To approve Option #1, to sponsor in the amount of $50,000.

Mayor Hernandez
Councilmember Gonzalez
2-2, by the following roll call vote:

Councilmember Gonzalez and Mayor Hernandez.
Councilmember Bautista and Mayor Pro Tem Martinez.
None.

Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

To continue to special meeting, with the condition that the applicant
supply to the City Manager a list of investors within 48 hours.

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez
Councilmember Bautista
4-0, by the following roll call vote:

Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem
Martinez and Mayor Hernandez

None.

None.

Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

-11-



ITEM 9.b.

Page 6

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA June 26, 2019

Sponsorship Request for the 3rd Annual East Coachella Valley LGBTQ Pride Festival.

Motion:

Made by:
Seconded by:
Approved:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

To approve sponsorship request in the amount of a $5,000.00 cash
contribution, plus in-kind services.

Councilmember Bautista
Mayor Pro Tem Martinez
4-0, by the following roll call vote:

Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem
Martinez and Mayor Hernandez

None.

None.

Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

Sponsorship of the 2019 Date Harvest Fest and execution of lease agreement for Rancho Las

Flores Park.
Motion:
Made by:
Seconded by:
Approved:
AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

To waive fees for park and waive fees for library usage.

Mayor Hernandez
Councilmember Bautista
4-0, by the following roll call vote:

Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem
Martinez and Mayor Hernandez

None.

None.

Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Grant Agreement with Accelerator for America in the
Amount of $50,000 to Support the City's Opportunity Zone Endeavors.

Motion:

Made by:
Seconded by:
Approved:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

To approve per staff recommendation.

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez
Councilmember Bautista
4-0, by the following roll call vote:

Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem
Martinez and Mayor Hernandez

None.

None.

Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

-12-



ITEM 9.b.

Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA e moy —eme
Page 7

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez recused himself from the following item, due to his employment with 11D, stepping
away from the dais at 8:05 p.m.

g. Payment to the Imperial Irrigation District for an amount of $122,414.98 for the underground of
electrical distribution facilities and the removal of existing overhead power for the City Project
ST-78; Avenue 48 Street Improvements (Underground of Electrical Utility).

Public Comment: Robert Sterling

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation.

Made by: Councilmember Bautista

Seconded by: Mayor Hernandez

Approved: 3-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, and Mayor
Hernandez

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto and Mayor Pro Tem Martinez.

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez returned to the dais at 8:15 p.m.

Item 11.a., Public Comments were moved up to this portion of the meeting at 8:15 p.m.:
a. Eduardo Ortega
b. Luz Clarissa Chavez Betancourt

C. Mario Lazcano

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez announced he was recusing himself from the following two items due to property
ownership within the feet range that could be considered a conflict, and left the meeting at 8:17 p.m.

10. PuBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):

a. Roots Retail Cannabis Microbusiness and Café Project

1) Resolution No. 2019-20, approving Conditional Use Permit (CUP 306) to allow a 4,080
square foot retail cannabis microbusiness consisting of retail space, coffee shop, delivery
office, conference rooms, offices, manufacturing space and a parking lot in a vacant
building located at 791 Orchard Avenue.

2) Ordinance No. 1139, approving Change of Zone (CZ 18-04) to add the RC (Retail
Cannabis) overlay zone to the existing R-M (Multiple Family Residential) zone at 791
Orchard Avenue (First Reading).

Mayor Hernandez opened the Public Hearing for Item 10.a. at 8:35 p.m.

(Continued on next page.)

-13-



ITEM 9.b.

Page 8

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA June 26, 2019

Item 10. Roots Retail Cannabis Microbusiness and Café Project, Resolution No. 2019-20 and
Ordinance No. 1139 (First Reading) — continued from previous page.

Public Comments:  John Russo
Harry Mastt
Rosalio Avila
Roger Hernandez
Eduardo Ortega
Maria Jose Rodriguez

Mayor Hernandez closed the Public Hearing for Item 10.a. at 8:55 p.m.

At this time, the City Council took action on Item 10.b. before returning to this item for a vote.

Motion: To table item.

Made by: Councilmember Bautista

Seconded by: Mayor Hernandez

Approved: 3-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, and Mayor
Hernandez

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

Ordinance No. 1140 amending zoning regulations regarding commercial cannabis activity
facilities and retail cannabis businesses in order to expand the allowable locations and increase
the number of allowable retailers, modify current zoning regulations for cannabis activity
facilities, and make conforming amendments. (First Reading)

Mayor Hernandez opened the Public Hearing for Item 10.b. at 9:17 p.m.

Public Comment: Carina Romero
Eduardo Ortega

Mayor Hernandez closed the Public Hearing for Item 10.b. at 9:22 p.m.

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation.
Made by: Councilmember Bautista

Seconded by: Mayor Hernandez

Approved: 3-0, by the following roll call vote:

-14-



ITEM 9.b.

Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA ey e
Page 9
AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, and Mayor
Hernandez
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

Councilmember Bautista left the dais at 6:30 p.m.
Council was in recess from 9:32 pm. To 9:38 p.m.
C. Public Hearing for Resolution No. 2019-10 Confirming the Assessment and Diagram and
Ordering the Levy and Collection of Assessments for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 for the City of
Coachella Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District Number 1 through 38.
Mayor Hernandez opened the Public Hearing for Item 10.c. at 9:38 p.m.

Public Comment: None.

Mayor Hernandez closed the Public Hearing for Item 10.c. at 9:38 p.m.

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation.

Made by: Mayor Hernandez

Seconded by: Councilmember Bautista

Approved: 3-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, and Mayor
Hernandez

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.

11. PuBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

At 8:15 p.m., per Resolution No. 2019-34, Public Comments were moved up to page 7.

12. REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

a. Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees.

b. City Manager's Comments.

-15-



ITEM 9.b.

e ran CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA June 26, 2019
Page 10

13. ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business to come before the City Council and the Agencies, Mayor Hernandez
adjourned the meeting at 9:57 p.m.

-16-



ITEM 12.a.






_6‘[_

apChkLst

07/02/2019 12:50:42PM

Check List

City of Coachella

Page: 1

Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK

Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
105490 7/2/2019 50599 ARC IMAGING RESOURCES AB2356 5/15/2019 JL2019-20 SVC MAINT: CR35¢ 1,477.00 1,477.00
105491 7/2/2019 05900 CALED 300002037 5/15/2019 FY19/20 MBRSHP: GABRIEL N 570.00 570.00
105492 7/2/2019 42387 CALIFORNIACONTRACT CITH2710 6/27/2019 FY19/20 MEMBERSHIP DUES 2,700.00 2,700.00
105493 7/2/2019 48015 COMPLETE PAPERLESS SOL12877 5/28/2019 6/28/19-20 LASERFICHE SOF~ 5,302.00 5,302.00
105494 7/2/2019 44959 COMPUTER CONSULTANTS, 129257 6/25/2019 JL2019/20 SERVER MNTRNG 1,584.00 1,584.00
105495 7/2/2019 51441 CONTRERAS, ABEL 0000008 3/12/2019 7/3 FOURTH OF JULY DJ 255.00 255.00
105496 7/2/2019 42482 CRWA 19/20 Mbrshp 7/2/2019  FY19/20 MBRSHP DUES+WTF 1,302.00 1,302.00
105497 7/2/2019 02115 CWEA-TCP LG-7/31/19 5/8/2019  7/31 CERT RNWL CSM1+LAB 174.00

BB-7/31/19 5/8/2019  7/31 CERT RNWL ECI2: B. BL/ 92.00 266.00
105498 7/2/2019 42761 DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL HIN0353517 6/11/2019 FAC #FA0016778, EHP 19/20, | 842.00

IN0353590 6/11/2019 FAC #FA0025320, EHP 19/20, 842.00 1,684.00
105498 7/2/2019 50039 E&M, INC. 338451 6/4/2019  JN2019/20 TOPVIEW SUPPOF 825.00 825.00
105500 7/2/2019 48149 ET WATER SYSTEMS, INC 34527 6/10/2019 JL2019/20 IRRIGATION CONT 2 111.23 2,111.23
105501 7/2/2019 45757 IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRI4027221 7/2/2019 RMVL OF EXT OVERHEAD PC 122,414.98 122,414.98
105502 7/2/2019 51022 INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC 19/20 Mbrshp  4/4/2019  FY19/20 MBRSHP RNWL #27€ 435.00 435.00
105503 7/2/2019 53308 KNOWBE4, INC. INV61396 6/11/2019 JN2019/20 SECURITY AWARE 741.76 741.76
105504 7/2/2019 53230 LOS ANGELES PARTYWORKS 198397 7/2/2019  FINAL- 4TH OF JULY GAME B 3,375.00 3,375.00
105505 7/2/2019 53229 LUCKY DEVILS BAND LDBMS8NDT6E 4/5/2019  FINAL-4TH OF JULY ENTERT 4.144.00 4.144.00
105506 7/2/2019 52327 MAILFINANCE N7783342 6/18/2019 7/20-10/19, LSE NO. N1707173 787.14 787.14
105507 7/2/2019 51579 METLIFE- GROUP BENEFITS July2019 6/16/2019 JULY2019 DENTAL/VISION/LIF 12,440.48 12,440.48
105508 7/2/2019 53042 NCA ENTERTAINMENT 7/3 Event 71212019  7/3 AMUSEMENT RIDES 9,000.00 9,000.00
105509 7/2/2019 50595 PACIFIC LIGHTWAVE INC 8914-16 6/24/2019 JULY-SEPT2019 BUSINESS IN 2,397.00 2,397.00
105510 7/2/2019 51847 PARTY TIME RENTALS 25 712/2019  7/3 MECHANICAL BULL RNTL: 415.00 415.00
105511 7/2/2019 53309 PIRIFORM INC. 3508 6/20/2019 JL2019/20 CCLEANER CLOUL 1,360.00 1,360.00
105512 7/2/2019 43576 PURE PLANET WATER, INC. 10247 6/18/2019 JULY2019 RNTL, WTR PURIFI 32.63

10260 6/24/2019 JULY2019 RNTL, WTR PURIFI 32.63

10261 6/24/2019 JULY2012 RNTL, WTR PURIFI 32.63

10262 6/24/2019 JULY2019 RNTL, WTR PURIFI 32.63

10263 6/24/2019 JULY2019 RNTL, WTR PURIFI 3263

10264 6/24/2019 JULY2019 RNTL, WTR PURIFI 32.63 1957
105513 7/2/2019 31705 RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DE INV-00079185 6/4/2019 SUPP+SPECIAL EVENT DEPC 414.00 414.0
105514 7/2/2019 50827 SDC SOUND COMPANY 1017 6/11/2019 7/3 STAGE/LIGHTING/SOUND 5,763.00 5,763.0
105515 7/2/2019 00582 STATE WATER RESOURCES (Gr T2 Rnwl-BB  7/1/2019 GR T2 CERT RNWL: B. BLAC} 60.00 60.0
105516 7/2/2019 02079 THE DESERT SUN #1082 July Sve 7/1/2019  AC #DS0400716, JULY2019 S\ 66.70




_OZ_

apChkLst Check List Page: 2 th
07/02/2019 12:50:42PM City of Coachella :z
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued) e
Check# Date  Vendor Invoice Inv Date Descrintion Amount Paid Check Tot ,[\)
105517 7/2/2019 45053 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 045-264094 6/1/2019  FY19/20 MAINTENANCE SUPI 80,036.60 80,036.¢ 93
105518 7/2/2019 53174 ZAMBELLI FIREWORKS 516494 6/13/2019 FINAL-4TH OF JULY FIREWO 16,750.00 16,750.0u
Sub total for WELLS FARGO BANK: 27887267

Page: 2



_[Z_

apChkLst
07/02/2019 12:50:42PM

Check List
City of Coachella

Page: 3

29 checks in this report.

Date: July 2, 2019

it /o,

City Manager: William B. Patfisoh Jr.

Controller: Javier Estrada

Grand Total All Checks:

Page: 3

278,872.67

BT INALI



_ZZ_

INH.LI

apChkLst Check List Page: 1
07/03/2019 7:35:36AM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (\©)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check To Q)
105519 7/10/2019 02137 AGGREGATE PRODUCTS, INC46706 6/10/2019 ACCM-9.5MM (3/8") STATE CC 2,159.67 2,159.u;'
105520 7/10/2019 46835 AIR AND HOSE SOURCE, INC.353613 6/17/2019 FEMALE PIP COUPLING, ETC 17.40 17.40
105521 7/10/2019 51489 AIRWAVE COMMUNICATIONS 2268 6/11/2019 INSTLL'D LED LIGHTBAR W/ I 4,016.27 4,016.27
106522 7/10/2019 01436 AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSE72218 5/31/2019 MAY2019 BLOOD DRAW 55.00 55.00
105523 7/10/2019 42837 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICEMAY2019 GRFT 5/31/2019 PE5/31 UNIFORMS 66.35 66.35
105524 7/10/2019 47955 ARCADIS U.S., INC. 0971339 5/7/12019 PE4/28 SENIOR CENTER EXF 14,346 .66
0977378 6/5/2019 PES5/26 SENIOR CENTER EXF 855963
0981741 6/21/2019 PE6/16 SENIOR CENTER EXF 5217.16 28,123.45
105525 7/10/2019 42251 ARCOS, MARIA Ck 7/10/19 6/13/2019 VOUCHER 66, 5/5-6/10 294 .42 294.42
105526 7/10/2019 45929 BECK OIL, INC. 26086CL 6/15/2019 PE6/15 PARKS DEPT FUEL 1,163.46
26138CL 6/15/2019 PE6/15 SANITARY DEPT FUEIL 617.33
26189CL 6/15/2019 PE6/15 GRAFFITI DEPT FUEL 599.41
26113CL 6/15/2019 PEG6/15 SENIOR CNTR FUEL 531.99
26080CL 6/15/2019 PE6/15 STREETS DEPT FUEL 498.23
26126CL 6/15/2019 PEG6/15 CODE ENF DEPT FUE 461.90
26082CL 6/15/2019 PEG6/15 WATER DEPT FUEL 440.38
26144CL 6/15/2019 PE6/15 BLDG MAINT DEPT FL 227.15
26076CL 6/15/2019 PE6/15 LLMD DEPT FUEL 159.44
26073CL 6/15/2019 PE6/15 ENG DEPT FUEL 120.64
26145CL 6/15/2019 PE6&/15 ADMIN DEPT FUEL 71.69
26074CL 6/15/2019 PE6/15 BLDG/PLANNING DEP 57.71 494933
105527 7/10/2019 53260 BIG BOYS MOVING & SERVICI0100 5/6/2019 DELIVERY OF BABY GRAND f 584.00 584.00
105528 7/10/2019 49486 BRC CONSTRUCTION 2019169 6/18/2019 RPLC'D SECTION OF CEILINC 980.00
2019198 6/8/2019 RPLC'D SECTION OF CEILINC 980.00 1,960.00
105529 7/10/2019 50977 BRISAS AIR CONDITIONING 1M0649 6/16/2019 TRBLSHT JUNCTION BOX @ 65.00 65.00
105530 7/10/2019 01109 BSN SPORTS INC. 905385917 6/7/2019  YELLOW POLY CAP FENCE C 431.19 431.19
105531 7/10/2019 50839 BURRTEC ENVIRONMENTAL AC 423418 5/31/2019 5/3+10+17+24 PORTOLE DELI 729.04 729.04
105532 7/10/2019 44494 BURRTEC WASTE & RECYCLIBD 5/31/19 5/31/2019 MAY2019 SWEEPER BOXES, 2,235.80 2,235.80
105533 7/10/2019 44494 BURRTEC WASTE & RECYCLIBD 6/1/19 6/1/2019  AC 44-BS 405340, 85075 AVE 86.52 86.52
105534 7/10/2019 43856 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS 7339-735119 6/12/2019 BATTERIES 268.55
7339-728412 4/1/2019 BATTERY -47.85
7339-735239 6/13/2019 BATTERIES -106.58 114.12
105535 7/10/2019 01856 CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES IN43075800 6/7/2019 5X8 NYLON/POLYESTER US 625.67
43075801 6/10/2019 5X8' POLYESTER US FLAGS 96.81 722.48

Page: 1



_SZ_

apChkLst

07/03/2019 7:35:36AM

Check List
City of Coachella

Page: 2

Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK {Continued)

Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
105536 7/10/2019 53038 CDS OFFICE INTERIORS LLC 610 6/13/2019 PAPER, SHARPIE, STENO BO 256.98 256.98
105537 7/10/2019 02048 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. sSQvo127 6/12/2019 HP 4GB DDR3-1600 DIMM ME 96.25 96.25
105538 7/10/2019 02327 CINTAS CORPORATION #150 4023096196 6/3/2019  6/3 MAT MAINTENANCE 99.49

4023963015 6/17/2019 6/17 MAT MAINTENANCE 99.49 198.98
105539 7/10/2019 02273 CLAIREMONT EQUIPMENT 49002101 6/20/2019 6/18-20 REACH FORKLIFT RN 1,213.77 1,213.77
105540 7/10/2019 53220 COACHELLAACE HARDWARE119/1 5/23/2019 SMARTFLO MAX HOSE, MSK! 232.53

11711 5/23/2019 PAINT SPRAYER CONTROL, 1 144.57

150/1 6/11/2019 HEX KEY SET, KEY-4PK & 6Pt 22.36

163/1 6/17/2019 COUPLING 3/8" FPT BRS 6.51 405.97
105541 7/10/2019 49806 DATATICKET INC. 101382 6/19/2019 MAY2019 CODE ENF CITATIO 608.65 608.65
105542 7/10/2019 01089 DESERT ELECTRIC SUPPLY S$2630211.001  5/29/2019 MS350W/V/PS 169.65

S2644201.001 5/29/2019 SEALED BRONZE COMPOSIT 112.84

S2644630.001 5/30/2019 JQ GREEN JQ-MR16-A06K30N 40.78 323.27
105543 7/10/2019 52970 DESERT POOL SPECIALISTS, 122197 6/7/2019 FOUNTAIN REPAIRS @ CITY | 775.08

122243 6/12/2019 FOUNTAIN REPAIRS @ VETE 420.86

122184 6/3/2019 JUNEZ2019 FOUNTAIN SVCS 325.00 1,620.94
105544 7/10/2019 13700 DEWEY PEST CONTROL INC. 12699998 6/1/2019  AC1281218, JUNE2019, BAGD 900.00

12699997 6/1/2019  AC1281215, JUNE2019, SIERF 300.00

AC934340-JN  6/1/2019 AC934340, JUNE2019, SANIT# 150.00

AC1062335-JN 6/1/2019  AC1062335, JUNE2019, CORF 141.00

12700484 6/1/2019  AC13156475, JUNE2019, 53990 120.00

12679169 6/1/2019  AC1404426, JUNE2019, LIBRA 85.00

12692715 6/1/2019  AC103361, JUNE2019, SENIOI 80.00

12711131 6/1/2019  AC1161434, JUNE2019, BGDN 65.00

12684989 6/1/2019  AC102942, JUNE2019, ADMIN 58.50

12711124 6/1/2019  AC1178382, JUNE2019, BOXIP 42.00

12685354 6/1/2019  AC1008112, JUNE2019, COMN 41.00

12700481 6/1/2019  AC1318236, JUNE2019, RLF S 40.00

12697984 6/1/2019  AC241000, JUNE2019, PLANN 37.00

12718506 6/1/2019  AC1067451, JUNE2019, WATE 36.00

12670303 6/1/2019  AC1126447, JUNE2019, SNAC 30.00

12700475 6/1/2019 AC1318239, JUNE2019, FRED 30.00

12700477 6/1/2019  AC1318244, JUNE2019, BGDMN 30.00

12700478 6/1/2019  AC1318235, JUNE2019, 84641 30.00 22155

Page: 2

BT INALI



o
+

BT INALI

apChkLst Check List Page: 3
07/03/2019 7:35:36AM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check To
105545 7/10/2019 14860 E. K. WOOD LUMBER COMPAI480395 6/17/2019 1GLOO 2GAL WATER COOLEF 77.56
479876 5/29/2019 GORILLA TAPE, WHT INT LIQ 48.09
480189 6/10/2019 PERC MAS BIT & EPOXY PUT 2517
480017 6/4/2019 EPOXY PUTTY 19.36 170.18
105546 7/10/2019 44713 FARMER BROTHERS CO. 69211110 6/25/2019 COFFEE MED RST, ICE TEA, 132.22 132.22
105547 7/10/2019 50162 FASTENAL COMPANY CAPAMB7524  6/6/2019 ASSORTED FREEZE POP & G 340.20
CAPAMGB7526  6/6/2019 SS BRLBLT 51.44 391.64
105548 7/10/2019 48834 FIX-IT COMMERCIAL SERVICE44818 6/20/2019 RPR'D ICE MACHINE @ CORF 1,245.52 1,245.52
105549 7/10/2019 51604 FRONTIER BD 6/16/19 6/16/2019 ACC 209-188-4039-091192-5. ¢ 171.87 171.87
105550 7/10/2019 43672 FULTON DISTRIBUTING COMI478065 6/17/2019 LINER, FOAM HAND SOAP, N. 917.31
477624 6/11/2019 TISSUE TOILET & TOWEL RO 742.92
477551 6/10/2019 TOWEL ROLL, DISINFECTAN" 307.06
477792 6/12/2019 BAG VACUUM WINDSOR & C, 74.52
478572 6/21/2019 DISINFECTANT CLEANER -92.82 1,948.99
105551 7/10/2019 53310 H.E.S. HERRERAELECTRIC 145 6/19/2019 INSTLL'D ELECTRICAL WIRE 825.00 825.00
105552 7/10/2019 51892 HERC RENTALS, INC. 30731291-006  6/10/2019 5/3-28 CART BURDEN 2 PSNC( 547.83
30731291-007 6/11/2019 5/3-28 CART BURDEN 2 PSNC 547.83 1,095.66
105553 7/10/2019 00996 HOME DEPOT 8164293 6/24/2019 HUSKY 5-SHELF WELDED UN 914.19 914.19
105554 7/10/2019 20150 HYDRO AG SYSTEMS 245394 6/13/2019 PVC CAP, WELD-ON 2711 QT 86.17 86.17
105555 7/10/2019 20450 IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRI50459819-MY19 5/28/2019 AC50459819, 4/25-5/23 36.06 36.06
105556 7/10/2019 45108 IMPERIAL SPRINKLER SUPPL'3763731-00 6/7/2019 FERTBEST AMMONIUM SULF 1,629.95
3763735-00 6/4/2019 HUNTER 2 STABATTERY OPF 323.27
3774976-00 6/12/2019 2X1 BUSHING PVC SCH40, E” 102.47
3770259-00 6/7/2019 DRIPRB MICRO FLOOD BUBE 76.03
3767859-00 6/6/2019 RAINBIRD 1" PLASTIC INLINE 62.46
3774294-00 6/12/2019 HUNTER 6" ULTRA POP-UP W 33.57
3763971-00 6/4/2019  3/4" COUPLING PVC SCH40, ¢ 9.98
3773863-00 6/11/2019 1/2" CAP PVC SCH40 2.29 2,240.02
105557 7/10/2019 22450 JOBS AVAILABLE, INC. 1914004A 6/25/2019 6/25 AD: BUILDING INSPECTC 351.00 351.00
105558 7/10/2019 48293 KOA CORPORATION JB72075x15 6/12/2019 PE6/2 AVE 50 IMPROVEMENT 4,221.86 4.221.86
105559 7/10/2019 44047 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS 9005781874 6/13/2019 BIZHUB C454E, CITY HALL, 5/ 182.68
9005799173 6/19/2019 BIZHUB C360, CITY HALL, 5/2 78.11
9005802766 6/20/2019 BIZHUB C360, CITY HALL, 6/2 34.05 294 .84
105560 7/10/2019 45051 LAMAR OF PALM SPRINGS 110292175 5/31/2019 5/31 JULY HOLIDAY VINYL 125.00 125.00
105561 7/10/2019 48595 LANDES, LUCRECIA June 2019 6/27/2019 JUNE2019 ESL CLASS 315.00 315.00

Page: 3



_gz_

Check List
City of Coachella

apChkLst
07/03/2019 7:35:36AM

Page: 4

Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)

Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
105562 7/10/2019 50501 LIVESCAN MGMT GROUP, INC068042019COC 6/12/2019 UV WATERPROOF STICKERS 244 69 244 69
105563 7/10/2019 49857 MANPOWER US INC. 34018209 6/16/2019 WE 6/16: LEAL FLORES 434.00

33996436 6/9/2019 WE 6/2: BRAVO 206.25

33996431 6/9/2019 WE 6/2: BRAVO 189.97

33996434 6/9/2019 WE 6/9: SOTO 130.26

33996435 6/9/2019 WE 6/9: LEAL FLORES 86.80 1,047.28
105564 7/10/2019 52344 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST CD 6/11/19 6/11/2019 POSTAGE BY PHONE #7900 C 1,044.14 1,044.14
105565 7/10/2019 53197 NORTHWEST HYDRAULIC 23889 6/13/2019 PE5/31 EC ASSMNT FOR STC 26,479.03 26,479.03
105566 7/10/2019 42112 NRO ENGINEERING 04-19-012 3/31/2019 PE3/31 PLNCK, 48TH & HRSN 3,213.00 3,213.00
105567 7/10/2019 51064 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICEMAX 315047309-001 5/13/2019 HANGING FOLDERS, USB FL/ 158.81 158.81
105568 7/10/2019 52757 OLLIN STRATEGIES 61 6/23/2019 JUNE2019 CONSULTING SVC 5,000.00 5,000.00
105569 7/10/2019 47192 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 2855-122974 6/17/2019 PWR STG GEAR 24557

2855-121508 6/12/2019 DISC PAD SET & DRAIN PLUC 92.30

2855-123592 6/19/2019 DISC PAD SET 87.11

2855-123191 6/18/2019 CERAMIC PADS 65.23

2855-121361 6/11/2019 TRUCK STEP 59.80

2855-121858 6/13/2019 SELECTOR SW 48.81

2855-123517 6/19/2019 PHONE HOLDER & SUNSHAL 2717

2855-121900 6/13/2019 SILICONE 15.21

2855-119910 6/6/2019 OILFILTER 14.03

2855-123595 6/19/2019 SUNSHADE 2.18 657.41
105570 7/10/2019 52650 PALMS TO PINES PRINTING A0606COCSWB-f 6/18/2019 260Z VACUUM WATER BOTT 1,517.07

0530COCST-FA 6/17/2019 SHOPPING TOTE BAG 611.93

0606COCRP-FA 6/17/2019 ROLLING PAPERS 496.83

0529COCLEPFA 6/17/2019 METAL PEN W/ STYLUS & LEI 379.14

0606COCLB-FA 6/17/2019 SPF15 LIP BALM 377.95

0606COCCL-FA 6/17/2019 FLINT CIGARETTE LIGHTER 310.54 3,693.486
105571 7/10/2019 02028 PETE'S ROAD SERVICE, INC. 332934-00 6/13/2019 FLAT REPAIR & MOUNT/BALA 188.48

332060-00 6/11/2019 SVC CALL: B-HOE FLAT REPA 128.46 316.€
105572 7/10/2019 42433 POOL & ELECTRICAL PRODU02564571 6/6/2019 PILOT SCREW W/ GUM WASI 6.39 6.3
105573 7/10/2019 42759 PROPER SOLUTIONS, INC. 9656 6/21/2019 WE 6/21: L. SERVIN 720.00

9348 4/5/2019  WE 4/5: B. DELAROSA 675.00 1,395.0
105574 7/10/2019 48977 PROTECTION 1/ADT 129037379 5/31/2019 ADDTNL EQUIP/LABOR CHRC 6,224.74

129105075 6/5/2019  ADDTNL EQUIP/LABOR CHRC 3,278.01 9,502.7
105575 7/10/2019 52306 QUINN COMPANY 10672401 6/18/2019 6/5-6 YD LOADER RNTL 1,766.37 1,766.3  jumm




_9Z_

¢l WALI

apChkLst Check List Page: 5
07/03/2019 7:35:36AM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)

Check# Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check To
105576 7/10/2019 44161 ROBERT HALF MNGT RESOUI53704595 6/24/2019 WE 6/21: M. AMEZCUA 328.64 328. o
105577 7/10/2019 32950 SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, IN'79895313 5/30/2019 5/28 SVC 257.12 25712
106578 7/10/2019 52503 SILVA, CARLOS June 2019 6/27/2019 JUNE2019 CERAMIC CLASS 320.00 320.00
105579 7/10/2019 35000 SMART & FINAL 058593 6/25/2019 NAPKINS, PLATES, FORKS, C 230.79 230.79
105580 7/10/2019 51139 SOUTHERN COMPUTER WARIN-000583510  6/18/2019 SAMSUNG 670 55" 2160P LELC 1,352.89

IN-000582941  6/14/2019 SAMSUNG 670 55" 2160P LELC 676.45
IN-000682248  6/12/2019 SAMSUNG 860 EVO-SERIES 195.73 2,225.07
105581 7/10/2019 38250 TOPS N BARRICADES 1075627 6/12/2019 PADDLE STOP/SLOW METAL 85.91
1075610 6/11/2019 6/10-13 ROAD WORK SIGNS | 56.50
1075364 5/30/2019 HARD HATS 42.41
1075329 5/30/2019 4/2-4 DELINEATORS RNTL 30.00 214.82
105582 7/10/2019 52204 TPX COMMUNICATIONS 117848561-0 6/16/2019 AC33325, 6/16-7/15 3,332.53 3,332.53
105583 7/10/2019 50229 URBAN HABITAT ENVIRONME 5019 6/25/2019 JUNE2019 ETHEREAPJCT LN 700.00 700.00
105584 7/10/2019 44966 VERIZON WIRELESS 9831175410 6/1/2019  AC371867190-00001, 5/2-6/1 5,398.54
9825215801 3/1/2019  AC371867190-00001, 2/2-3/1 5,238.59 10,637.13
105585 7/10/2019 50629 VINTAGE ASSOCIATES, INC 212689 5/31/2019 INSTLL'D LANDSCAPING @ P 56,862.00
212669 6/15/2019 JUNEZ2019 LNDSCPE MAINT ¢ 10,550.00
212670 6/15/2019 JUNE2019 LNDSCPE MAINT ¢ 6,067.36
212671 6/15/2019 JUNE2019 LNDSCPE MAINT ¢ 4,836.00
212679 6/15/2019 JUNE2019 LNDSCPE MAINT (¢ 3,600.00
212681 6/15/2019 JUNE2019 LNDSCPE MAINT ¢ 1,600.00 83,515.36
105586 7/10/2019 44428 VISTAAIR CONDITIONING 5487 6/13/2019 1-TON MINI SPLIT AIR HANDL 2,400.00
5488 6/13/2019 INSTLL'D 1-TON MINI SPLIT A 800.00
5514 6/24/2019 RPLC'D MOTOR @ CORP YAF 540.00 3,740.00
105587 7/10/2019 49778 WEST COAST ARBORIST, INC148822 5/16/2019 PES5/16 TREE MAINT @ LLMD 1,148.00
148823 5/31/2019 PES5/31 TREE MAINT @ LLMD 574.00 1,722.00
105588 7/10/2019 00384 WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICI002-21085 6/5/2019  MAY2019 BLDG & SAFETY SV 26,390.00
002-20941 5/1/2019  APR2019 BLDG & SAFETY SV 22,400.00
005-21086 6/5/2019  MAY2019 INSPECTION SVCS 1,080.00
002-20942 5/1/2019  APR2019 INSPECTION SVCS 720.00 50,590.00
105589 7/10/2019 48971 XPRESS GRAPHICS & PRINTII19-32098 6/23/2019 BUS STOP ADS 349.05 349.05
Sub total for WELLS FARGO BANK: 280,703.35

Page: 5



_LZ_

apChkLst
07/03/2019 7:35:36AM

Check List
City of Coachella

Page: 6

71 checks in this report.

Date: July 10, 2019

City Manager: William B. Pagti

Toere R

Controller: Javier Estrada

Grand Total All Checks:

~280,703.35

BT INALI

Page: 6






ITEM 12.b.






ITEM 12.b.

STAFF REPORT
7/10/2019
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1140 amending various sections of Title 17 (Zoning) of the

Coachella Municipal Code in order to amend zoning regulations regarding
commercial Cannabis Activity Facilities and Retail Cannabis Businesses in order
to expand the allowable locations and increase the number of allowable retailers,
modify current zoning regulations for Cannabis Activity Facilities, and make
conforming amendments. (Second Reading).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 1140 approving the various
amendments to Title 17 (Zoning) in order to amend zoning regulations regarding Commercial
Cannabis Activity Facilities and Retail Cannabis Businesses in order to expand the allowable
locations and increase the number of allowable retailers, modify current zoning regulations for
Cannabis Activity Facilities, and make conforming amendments

BACKGROUND:

On June 26, 2019 the City Council took final action on Ordinance No. 1140 amending Sub-
Section 17.34.020, and Chapters 17.46, 17.47, 17.84, and 17.85 of the Coachella Municipal Code
in their entirety as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herewith. Chapter
17.84 of the Coachella Municipal Code (Zoning) and establishing zoning regulations for retail
cannabis businesses under a new RC (Retail Cannabis) Overlay Zone.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

Subsection 17.84.030(A) of the new regulations allows a maximum of ten (10) retail cannabis
businesses in the City of Coachella within the qualifying Sub-zones, subject to having the proper
zoning and subject to obtaining a Conditional Use Permit. The Ordinance will allow up to five
(5) dispensaries in the expanded Sub-zone #1 (Pueblo Viejo) and a maximum of two (2) in the
expanded Sub-Zone #2 (Glenroy Resort) which now includes the AM/PM property. The new
dispensary (i.e., “Roots Café and Dispensary”’) within Sub-Zone #2 will require the processing of
a Development Agreement with the landowner. Additionally, the remainder of retail cannabis
stores may locate within the new Sub-Zone #3 (Dillon Road), the M-W (Wrecking Yard), and
the MS-IP (Manufacturing Service — Industrial Park Overlay) districts.

-31-



ITEM 12.b.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There are no direct fiscal impacts associated with adoption of Ordinance No. 1140 in that the
Ordinance merely creates new regulatory and administrative procedures for the City’s review of
new retail cannabis applications. All new retail cannabis businesses must obtain a cannabis
regulatory permit and pay all mandatory excise taxes.

Attachments:  Ordinance No. 1140 (2™ Reading) with “Exhibit A”

-32-



ITEM 12.b.

ORDINANCE NO. 1140

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF
TITLE 17 (ZONING) OF THE COACHELLA MUNICIPAL CODE IN
ORDER TO AMEND ZONING REGULATIONS REGARDING
COMMERCIAL CANNABIS ACTIVITY FACILITIES AND RETAIL
CANNABIS BUSINESSES IN ORDER TO EXPAND THE ALLOWABLE
LOCATIONS AND INCREASE THE NUMBER OF ALLOWABLE
RETAILERS, MODIFY CURRENT ZONING REGULATIONS FOR
CANNABIS ACTIVITY FACILITIES, AND MAKE CONFORMING
AMENDMENTS.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted to the City of Coachella (“City”) by
Article XI, Section 7 of the California Constitution, the City has the police power to regulate the
use of land and property within the City in a manner designed to promote public convenience
and general prosperity, as well as public health, welfare, and safety; and

WHEREAS, adoption and enforcement of comprehensive zoning regulations and other
land use regulations lies within the City’s police power; and

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2016, California voters passed Proposition 64, the Control,
Regulate and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act (“AUMA”), legalizing the use and possession of
cannabis and cannabis products by adults aged 21 years and older; and

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2017, Governor Brown signed into law Senate Bill 94, which
repealed the Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (“MCRSA”), included certain
provisions of MCRSA in the licensing provisions of AUMA, and created a single regulatory
scheme for both medicinal and non-medicinal cannabis known as the Medicinal and Adult-Use

Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (“MAUCRSA” or “Act”); and

WHEREAS, MAUCRSA retains the provisions in the MCRSA and the AUMA that
granted local jurisdictions control over whether non-commercial and commercial cannabis
activities could occur in a particular jurisdiction. Specifically, California Business and
Professions Code section 26200 provides that MAUCRSA shall not be interpreted to supersede
or limit the authority of a local jurisdiction to adopt and enforce local ordinances that completely
prohibit the establishment or operation of one or more businesses licensed under the state
licensing authority and shall not approve an application for a state license for a business to
engage in commercial cannabis activity if approval by the state license will violate the provisions
of any local ordinance or regulation. State licensing authorities began issuing licenses to
cannabis businesses beginning January 1, 2018; and

WHEREAS, MAUCRSA establishes a regulatory structure for cultivation, processing,
manufacturing, tracking, quality control, testing, inspection, distribution, and retail sale of
commercial cannabis, including medicinal and adult-use cannabis. The Act designates applicable
responsibilities for oversight of cannabis commerce to several State agencies; and

Ordinance No. 1140

-33-



ITEM 12.b.

WHEREAS, the proposed Ordinance would amend Title 17 (Zoning), Chapters 17.34,
17.46, 17.47, 17.84, and 17.85 to (i) comply with current City policies and State law; (ii) to allow
additional cannabis retail businesses in the City; (ii1) to designate additional areas in the City
where cannabis retail businesses may operate; and

WHEREAS, the subject Municipal Code Amendment is not subject to the California
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3), and
15061(b)(3). The activity is not subject to CEQA because it will not result in a direct or
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; the activity is not a project
as defined in Section 15378 of the California Public Resources Code, and the activity is covered
by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects, which have the potential for causing a
significant impact on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that the activity may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not
subject to CEQA; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Coachella (“Planning
Commission”) conducted a properly noticed public hearing on April 17, 2019 at which members
of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment upon this Ordinance, the
recommendations of staff, and other public testimony; and

WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Planning Commission recommended that the
City Council approve this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted properly noticed public hearings on May 8,
2019 and on June 26, 2019 at which members of the public were afforded an opportunity to
comment on this Ordinance, the recommendations of staff, and other public testimony.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA,
CALIFORNIA, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The City Council hereby finds that all of the
foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings of the City Council as if fully
set forth herein.

SECTION 2. Amendment to the Coachella Municipal Code. Title 17 (Zoning), Sub-
Section 17.34.020, and Chapters 17.46, 17.47, 17.84, and 17.85 are hereby deleted and replaced
in their entirety as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herewith.

SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its
adoption.

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this Ordinance, or any part thereof is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this
Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed

Ordinance No. 1140

-34-



ITEM 12.b.

section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the
fact that any one or more section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase
be declared unconstitutional.

SECTION 5. Certification. The City Clerk shall certify the passage of this Ordinance
and shall cause the same to be entered in the book of original ordinances of said City; shall make
a minute passage and adoption thereof in the records of the meeting at which time the same is
passed and adopted; and shall, within fifteen (15) days after the passage and adoption thereof,
cause the same to be published as required by law, in a local newspaper of general circulation
and which is hereby designated for that purpose.

SECTION 6. CEQA. The City Council finds that the subject Municipal Code
Amendment is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to
Sections 15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3), and 15061(b)(3). The activity is not subject to CEQA
because it will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the
environment; the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the California Public
Resources Code, and the activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to
projects, which have the potential for causing a significant impact on the environment. Where it
can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity may have a significant
effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10™ day of July, 2019.

Steven A. Hernandez
Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela M. Zepeda
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carlos Campos
City Attorney

Ordinance No. 1140

-35-



ITEM 12.b.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE ) ss.
CITY OF COACHELLA )

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Ordinance No. 1140 was duly and regularly
introduced at a meeting of the City Council on the 26" day of June, 2019, and that thereafter the
said ordinance was duly passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council on the 10"
day of July, 2019.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC
Deputy City Clerk

Ordinance No. 1140

-36-



ITEM 12.b.

EXHIBIT “A”

Ordinance No. 1140

-37-






ITEM 12.b.

Exhibit “A”

Chapter 17.34 — M-W Wrecking Yard Zone
17.34.020 - Permitted uses.

A. Primary Uses.
1. All uses permitted by Section 17.32.030(A) of the M-H zone;

B. Accessory Uses. The following buildings, structures, and uses are permitted when clearly
incidental and accessory to a primary permitted use.

1. Those uses permitted by Section 17.32.020(B) of the M-H zone.

C. Conditional Uses. The following uses may be permitted in the M-W zone subject to
obtaining a conditional use permit pursuant to Chapter 17.74 of this code.

1. Those conditional uses allowed by Section 17.32.020(C) in the M-H zone;

2. Automobile dismantling or wrecking yard;

3. Automobile impounding yard;

4. Community recycling collection facilities, pursuant to Chapter 17.90;

5. Construction and demo material recycling facilities pursuant to Chapter 17.90;
6. Wood and green waste recycling facilities, pursuant to Chapter 17.90.

7. Cannabis cultivation, manufacturing, distribution, testing, and retail (including

microbusiness) facilities, pursuant to Chapters 17.84 and 17.85.

D. The following uses may be permitted in the M-W zone subject to obtaining a specific
plan adoption pursuant to Chapter 17.36 of this code.

1. Transfer station, large scale, pursuant to Chapter 17.90.

-39-



ITEM 12.b.

Chapter 17.46 - IP INDUSTRIAL PARK OVERLAY ZONE
17.46.010 - Intent and purpose.

This overlay zone is intended to provide for the well-planned and orderly development of
industrial parks within the community and to eliminate or adequately mitigate any adverse
impacts on the community related to such types of development. The IP (industrial park) overlay
zone designation may be applied to certain property described herein that is zoned M-S
(manufacturing service). When the IP overlay zone designation is added to such property, the
provisions of this article shall apply in addition to the regulations provided by the underlying M-
S zone. Whenever there is a conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this article and
the underlying zone, the provisions of this chapter shall be controlling.

17.46.015 - Property eligible for IP industrial park overlay zone classification.
The IP industrial park overlay zone classification shall be limited to those projects that are:

A. Located within Sub-Areas #6 (Downtown Expansion), #7 (South Employment District),
or #10 (North Employment District) of the city of the Coachella General Plan; and

B. Zoned as M-S (manufacturing service); and

C. A minimum of ten (10) acres in project area (all lots developed according to common
plan or scheme).

17.46.020 - Permitted uses.

A. Except as expressly conditioned or prohibited in this chapter, all uses permitted in the
underlying M-S zone shall be permitted in the IP overlay zone;

B. Research and development;
C. Professional office;
D. Warehousing and distribution.

17.46.023 - Conditional uses.

The following uses may be permitted in the IP overlay zone subject to obtaining a conditional
use permit as specific in Section 17.74.010:

A. Cannabis cultivation, processing, testing, manufacturing, wholesale distribution and/or

retail sale (including microbusinesses), subject to the regulatory requirements of Chapters 5.68
and 5.69 of this code.

-40-



ITEM 12.b.

1. For purposes of this subsection A., “‘cannabis cultivation, processing, testing,
manufacturing, wholesale distribution and/or retail sale (including microbusinesses)” shall not be
deemed as the permitted uses of “drugs manufacture”, “food products processing, manufacturing,

99 <¢

canning, preserving and freezing”, “fruit and vegetable packing house”, or “testing laboratories”
under Section 17.30.020(A).

17.46.026 - Prohibited uses.

The following uses are prohibited in the IP overlay zone:

A. Outdoor storage yard;

B. Automobile repair business;

C. Automobile body and fender works;

D. Any other conditional uses in the M-S zone, except as set forth in this chapter.
17.46.030 - Property development standards.

A. Project Area/Lot Requirements

I. Minimum Project Area. Ten (10) acres. For purposes of this paragraph, “project area”
shall mean the combined area of all legally subdivided lots developed as a common plan or

scheme by the same or affiliated developer(s).

2. Minimum individual Lot Size. Five (5) acres for any lot on which is located a cannabis
cultivation, processing, testing, manufacturing or distribution use. For all other lots, one (1) acre.

3. Minimum Lot Width. One hundred eighty (180) feet.
4. Minimum Lot Depth. Two hundred twenty (220) feet.

5. Maximum Lot Coverage. Fifty (50) percent. The Development Services Director may
allow individual lots within a project area to exceed this standard if he or she finds that: (i) it will
result in more orderly development of the project area and (ii) the average lot coverage of all lots
within the project area does not exceed fifty (50) percent.

6. No retail cannabis use shall be located within eight hundred (800) feet of Avenue 52.
The distance shall be measured at the nearest point between any part of the building containing
retail cannabis use and Avenue 52 street right-of-way line.

B. Front Yard Requirements.
1. Twenty-five (25) feet from the curb on all property fronting on Avenue 54 and Avenue
52.

4]-



ITEM 12.b.

2. Twenty (20) feet from the curb on all property fronting Industrial Way, Enterprise Way
or Polk Street.

3. Ten (10) feet from the curb on all property fronting any local street.
4. All front setbacks shall be landscaped in a manner approved by the planning commission.
5. No buildings, facilities or other improvements shall be allowed in a required front yard

except for landscaping or block entryways approved by the planning commission.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, required yards may be used for automobile parking; provided,
that landscaping approved by the planning commission is provided along the frontage of the

property.

C. Height Limits. The maximum height of any building or structure shall be fifty (50) feet.
D. Distance Between Uses/Buildings. No cannabis cultivation, processing, testing,
manufacture distribution or retail use shall be located within one thousand (1,000) feet of any
residentially zoned lot. The distance shall be measured at the nearest point between any part of
the building containing the cannabis use and any lot line of the residential use.

E. On-Street/Off-Street Parking and Loading.

1. Oft-Street Parking and Loading. Off-street parking and loading facilities shall be
provided in accordance with the provisions of Section 17.54.010 of this title.

2. On-Street Parking and Loading. On-street parking or loading shall be prohibited.
F. Walls and Screening.

1. Each development on a lot or parcel of property shall be enclosed with decorative
masonry walls and/or wrought iron fencing, subject to review by the planning commission.

2. All parking lots and loading areas shall be screened from view to the street with low
decorative masonry walls and landscaping, subject to review by the planning commission.

G. Other Property Development Standards.

I. All utilities shall be underground, until such time as the power transmitted is greater than
thirty-four (34) KV and then it shall be brought to the attention of the planning commission prior
to any construction.

2. All developments shall include an exterior lighting system to provide adequate are

security. Such lighting system shall use high-pressure sodium lights or an equivalent type of light
approved by the planning commission.

-40-



ITEM 12.b.

3. All developments shall be landscaped in a manner approved by the planning commission.
17.46.040 - Architectural review.

All developments shall be subject to architectural review in accordance with Section 17.72.010
of this title, including planning commission review of design guidelines and signs as described
below. Any addition to or exterior alteration of an existing development also shall be subject to
such architectural review.

A. Design Guidelines. Detailed architectural and/or artist renderings, or pictorial depictions,
of allowable building types, architectural themes, and typical common-area landscaping and
lighting shall be provided for all industrial park overlay zone developments. Conceptual design
guidelines in text describing allowable architectural theming and exterior building materials,
roofing and roof line treatments, window and door opening designs, and landscaping plant
palettes, must accompany the industrial park overlay zone architectural review submittal. The
use of green houses, butler buildings, or other pre-fabricated structures are prohibited unless they
are treated architecturally to have the appearance of a contemporary concrete tilt-up building
with parapet roof structures. All main buildings shall have variation in exterior wall planes and
roof lines to limit massing and monotone design features, subject to review by the planning
commission.

B. Signs. A comprehensive sign program shall be included as a part of architectural review
for new industrial park overlay zone developments.

-43-



ITEM 12.b.

Chapter 17.47 - RC RETAIL CANNABIS OVERLAY ZONE
17.47.010 - Intent and purpose.

This overlay zone is intended to provide for the well-planned and orderly development of retail
cannabis businesses within the community and to eliminate or adequately mitigate any adverse
impacts on the community related to such types of development. The RC (retail cannabis)
overlay zone designation may be applied to certain property described herein that is zoned C-G
(general commercial), R-M (residential multi-family), and M-S (manufacturing service). When
the RC overlay zone designation is added to such property, the provisions of this chapter shall
apply in addition to the regulations provided by the underlying C-G zone, R-M, M-S zones.
Whenever there is a conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this article and the
underlying zone, the provisions of this chapter shall be controlling.

17.47.020 - Property eligible for RC retail cannabis overlay zone classification.

The RC retail cannabis overlay zone shall be divided into three (3) sub-zones. This overlay
classification shall be limited to those projects that:

A. Sub-Zone #1:

1. Are located either along the west side of Grapefruit Boulevard (State Highway 111)
between 1% Street and 9™ Street, on the east side of Grapefruit Boulevard between 4™
Street and 9™ Street, and

2. Have either a front or side lot line facing Grapefruit Boulevard, a front lot line facing 4th
Street within 225 feet of Grapefruit Boulevard, a front lot line facing 5th Street within
225 feet of Grapefruit Boulevard, a front lot line facing 6th Street between Grapefruit
Boulevard and Vine Street, a front lot line facing 7th Street within 225 feet of Grapefruit
Boulevard, a front lot line facing 8th Street within 225 feet of Grapefruit Boulevard, a
front lot line on the north side of 9th Street within 225 feet of Grapefruit Boulevard, and

3. Are zoned C-G (general commercial), R-M (residential multifamily), or M-S
(manufacturing-service).

B. Sub-Zone #2:

1. Are located along the south side of Avenue 48, between Grapefruit Boulevard and Van
Buren Street; and

2. Have either a front or side lot line fronting Avenue 48 or Grapefruit Boulevard; and

3. Are zoned C-G (general commercial).

-44-



ITEM 12.b.

C. Sub-Zone #3:

1. Are located along either side of Dillon Road, between State Highway 86 and Vista Del
Norte, and shall also include properties on the south side of Vista Del Sur fronting on
Camp Court; and

2. Have either a front or side lot line fronting Dillon Road or Camp Court; and
3. Are zoned C-G (general commercial).

17.47.030 - Permitted uses.

Any uses permitted in the underlying zoning district of the property.

17.47.040 - Conditional uses.

The following uses may be permitted in the RC overlay zone subject to obtaining the appropriate
approval:

A. 1In Sub-Zones #1, and 3: The retail sale, exchange, transaction or delivery of cannabis,
including retailers or microbusinesses, subject to a conditional use permit as specified in
Section 17.74.010, as well as the regulatory requirements of Chapters 5.69 and 17.84 of this
code.

B. In Sub-Zone #2: The retail sale, exchange, transaction or delivery of cannabis, including
retailers or microbusinesses, subject to obtaining a conditional use permit as specified in
Section 17.74.01, and subject to a development agreement as specified in Chapter 17.100, as
well as the regulatory requirements of Chapters 5.69 and 17.84 of this code.

17.47.050 - Prohibited uses.

Any uses not identified as “permitted” or “conditionally permitted” by this ordinance or by the
chapter of this code applicable to the site’s underlying zone are prohibited.

17.47.060 - Property development standards.

A. Project Area/Lot/Building Height Requirements. Except as specified in the applicable
development agreement, CUP, or regulatory permit, the project area, lot size, lot coverage
and building height requirements of the underlying zone shall apply.

B. No Drive-Thru Retail Cannabis Facilities. No retail cannabis business within the RC
Overlay Zone shall operate “drive-thru”, “drive up”, “window service” or similar facilities
whereby a customer can order, purchase and receive retail cannabis without leaving his or

her vehicle.

-45-



ITEM 12.b.

C. No Non-Storefront Retailers. No retail cannabis business within the RC overlay zone shall
be operated as “non-storefront” or “delivery only”. Delivery may only be approved as
ancillary to the operation of a permitted cannabis retail business which is physically located
within the RC overlay zone and which primarily provides cannabis to customers on the
premises.

D. Distance Restrictions. No retail cannabis business within the RC overlay zone shall be
located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of any public or private school (K-12), day care
center or youth center. The distance shall be measured from the nearest point between any
part of the building containing the retail cannabis business to any lot line of the other use.
For purposes of this paragraph, the following definitions shall apply:

1. “Day care center” means any child day care facility other than a family day care home,
and includes infant centers, preschools, extended day care facilities and school age
child care centers.

2. “Youth center” means any public or private facility that is primarily used to house
recreational or social activities for minors, including, but not limited to, private youth
membership organizations or clubs, social service teenage club facilities, video
arcades, or similar amusement park facilities.

E. Location of Customer Entrance. No retail cannabis business shall have a customer entrance
that is adjacent to or directly across the street from a residentially zoned lot.

F.  On-Street/Off-Street Parking and Loading.

1. Off-Street Parking and Loading. Oft-street parking and loading facilities for a retail
cannabis business shall be provided in accordance with the provisions of Section
17.54.010-C(1) of this title.

2. On-Street Parking and Loading. On-street parking or loading shall be prohibited for a
retail cannabis business.

G. Microbusinesses. Microbusinesses are permitted in the RC cannabis overlay zone. To hold a
CUP for a microbusiness, the permittee must engage in at least three (3) of the following
commercial cannabis activities: cultivation, manufacturing, distribution, and retail sale. Any
cultivation at a microbusiness shall be limited to an area less than ten thousand (10,000)
square feet. Any manufacturing at a microbusiness shall use nonvolatile solvents or no
solvents.

17.47.070 - Architectural review.
All developments shall be subject to architectural review in accordance with Section 17.72.010
of this title, including planning commission review as described below. Any addition to or

exterior alteration of a retail cannabis use in an existing development also shall be subject to such
architectural review.

-46-



ITEM 12.b.

Design Criteria. Detailed architectural and/or artist renderings, or pictorial depictions, of the
architectural designs and/or theming of the business shall be submitted for planning
commission review. All retail cannabis businesses shall be designed to have a storefront
with glass door and windows facing the street, providing visibility into the front lobby or
showroom of the business. The applicant shall submit information regarding proposed
interior and exterior wall and roof finishes, windows and awnings, lighting fixtures, flooring
materials, and paint colors for the business for review by the planning commission.

47-



ITEM 12.b.

Chapter 17.84 - RETAIL CANNABIS BUSINESSES
17.84.010 - Purpose and intent.

It is the purpose and intent of this chapter to regulate the retail sale of medicinal cannabis and
nonmedicinal cannabis for adult use (including cannabis products, cannabis concentrate, and
edible cannabis products) within the city of Coachella.

The regulations and prohibitions in this chapter are enacted to ensure the health, safety, and
welfare of the residents of the city. The regulations and prohibitions herein, which are in
compliance with the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (“CUA”), the Medical Marijuana Program
Act (“MMP”), and the Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act
(“MAUCRSA”) (collectively, “state law”), do not interfere with the use and possession of
cannabis as authorized under state law.

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to: (1) allow persons to engage in conduct that
endangers others or causes a public nuisance, (2) allow any activity relating to the retail sale or
use of cannabis that is otherwise illegal under California state law, or (3) interfere with the use
and possession of cannabis as authorized under MAUCRSA.

17.84.020 - Definitions.
For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply.

“Applicant” means an owner that applies for a development agreement or conditional use permit
under this chapter.

“Cannabis” means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa Linnaeus, Cannabis indicia, or Cannabis
ruderalis, whether growing or not; the seeds thereof; the resin, whether crude or purified,
extracted from any part of the plant; every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or
preparation of the plant, its seeds, or resin. “Cannabis” also means the separated resin, whether
crude or purified, obtained from cannabis. “Cannabis” does not include the mature stalks of the
plant, fiber produced from the stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other
compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the
resin extracted therefrom), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of the plant which is incapable
of germination. For the purpose of this division, “cannabis” does not mean “industrial hemp” as
defined by Section 11018.5 of the Health and Safety Code.

“Cannabis concentrate” means cannabis that has undergone a process to concentrate one or more
active cannabinoids, thereby increasing the product’s potency. Resin from granular trichomes
from a cannabis plant is a concentrate for purposes of this division. A cannabis concentrate is not
considered food, as defined by Section 109935 of the Health and Safety Code, or a drug, as
defined by Section 109925 of the California Health and Safety Code.

-48-



ITEM 12.b.

“Cannabis products” means cannabis that has undergone a process whereby the plant material
has been transformed into a concentrate, including, but not limited to, concentrated cannabis, or
an edible or topical product containing cannabis or concentrated cannabis and other ingredients.

“City manager” means the city manager of the city of Coachella or designee.
“Conditional use permit” or “CUP” means a conditional use permit issued under this chapter.

“Customer” means a natural person 21 years of age or older or a natural person 18 years of age
or older who possesses a physician’s recommendation, or a primary caregiver.

“Delivery” means the commercial transfer of cannabis or cannabis products to a customer.

“Development agreement” means an agreement entered into between the city and an applicant
under this chapter pursuant to Section 65865 of the California Government Code.

“Edible cannabis product” means manufactured cannabis that is intended to be used, in whole or
in part, for human consumption, including, but not limited to, chewing gum, but excluding
products set forth in Division 15 of the California Food and Agricultural Code. An edible
cannabis product is not considered food as defined by Section 109935 of the California Health
and Safety Code or a drug as defined by Section 109925 of the California Health and Safety
Code. When the term “cannabis” is used in this chapter, it shall include “edible cannabis
products.”

“Microbusiness,” for purposes of this chapter, means a commercial business that engages in
retail cannabis sales and at least two of the following commercial cannabis activities: indoor
cultivation of cannabis on an area less than ten thousand (10,000) square feet, Level 1
manufacturing, and distribution, provided such permittee can demonstrate compliance with all
requirements imposed by this chapter and State law on licensed cultivators, distributors, Level 1
manufacturers, and retailers to the extent the permittee engages in such activities.

“Non-storefront retailer” means a cannabis retailer that provides cannabis exclusively through
delivery.

“Owner” means any of the following:

(1) A person with an aggregate ownership interest of twenty percent (20%) or more in the
applicant, unless the interest is solely a security, lien, or encumbrance;

(2) The chief executive officer of a nonprofit or other entity;

(3) A member of the board of directors of a nonprofit;

(4) The trustee(s) and all persons who have control of the trust and/or the commercial cannabis
business that is held in trust.

(5) An individual entitled to a share of at least twenty percent (20%) of the profits of the
commercial cannabis business;

(6) An individual that will be participating in the direction, control, or management of the person
applying for a permit. Such an individual includes any of the following: a general partner of a
commercial cannabis business that is organized as a partnership; a non-member manager or

-49-



ITEM 12.b.

managing member of a commercial cannabis business that is organized as a limited liability
company; an officer or director of a commercial cannabis business that is organized as a
corporation.

“Permittee” means any person holding a valid permit under this chapter. A permittee includes all
representatives, agents, parent entities, or subsidiary entities of the permittee.

“Person” includes any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, corporation,
limited liability company, estate, trust, business trust, receiver, syndicate, or any other group or
combination acting as a unit, and the plural as well as the singular.

“Premises” means the designated structures and land specified in the conditional use permit
application or development agreement that are in the possession of an used by the applicant or
permittee to conduct the retail cannabis business. The premises must be a contiguous area and
may only be occupied by one permittee.

“Retail cannabis business” or “retailer” means a business that sells and/or delivers cannabis or
cannabis products to customers.

“Sell,” “sale,” and “to sell” include any transaction, whereby, for any consideration title to
cannabis or cannabis products is transferred from one person to another, and includes the
delivery of cannabis or cannabis products pursuant to an order placed for the purchase of the
same and soliciting or receiving an order for the same, but does not include the return of
cannabis or cannabis products by a permittee to the permittee from who the cannabis or cannabis
product was purchased.

“State license” means a license issued by the state of California, as listed in California Business
and Professions Code Section 26050.

Words and phrases not specifically defined in this code shall have the meaning ascribed to them
as defined in the following sources:

A. The Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (“CUA”);

B. The Medical Marijuana Program (“MMP”); and

C. The Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (“MAUCRSA”).

17.84.030 - Development agreement or conditional use permit required.

A. The city may authorize a total of ten (10) retail cannabis businesses to operate in the city

of Coachella. No more than five (5) retail cannabis businesses may operate in Sub-Zone
#1 (as described in Chapter 17.47). No more than two (2) retail cannabis business may
operate in Sub-Zone #2 (as described in Chapter 17.47), subject to a development

agreement. The remaining retail cannabis businesses may operate in the M-W Wrecking
Yard Zone (as described in Chapter 17.34), the IP Industrial Park Overlay Zone (as

-50-



ITEM 12.b.

described in Chapter 17.46), and Sub-Zone #3 (as described in Chapter 17.47). If
applications are submitted for a greater number of conditional use permits than are
permitted by this section, selection among the applicants may be made by a process, and
subject to criteria, established by city council resolution. Conditional use permits for all

retail cannabis businesses shall be issued in accordance with the requirements in this
chapter and Chapters 17.34, 17.46, and 17.47, as applicable.

B. Prior to initiating operations and as a continuing requisite to operating a retail cannabis
business, including a retailer or microbusiness, the owner of the proposed retail cannabis
business shall obtain (i) either an executed development agreement or a valid conditional
use permit from the city as required by this code, (ii) a regulatory permit from the city
manager and shall pay application fees as established by resolution adopted by the city
council as amended from time to time, and (iii) a state license for each commercial
cannabis activity use authorized under a development agreement or conditional use
permit. Unless otherwise stated in this section, the provisions found in Chapter 17.74
entitled “Conditional Uses” shall apply.

C. Changes in state license type, business owner, or operation will require an amendment to
the approved conditional use permit.

D. A retailer with a physical address outside of the city that wishes to deliver cannabis or
cannabis products to a customer in the city is not required to obtain a conditional use
permit under this chapter, but is required to obtain a city business license.

E. This chapter does not apply to the individual possession of cannabis for personal adult
use, as allowed by state law. Personal possession and use of cannabis in compliance with
state law are permitted in the city of Coachella.

17.84.040 - Retail cannabis businesses—Permitted locations and standards.

A. Retail cannabis businesses may be located in the M-W Wrecking Yard Zone, as described
in Chapter 17.34, the IP Industrial Park Overlay Zone, as described in Chapter 17.46, and
the RC retail cannabis overlay zone, as described in Chapter 17.47, upon issuance of (i) a
fully executed development agreement between the city and owner or valid CUP,
whichever is applicable, (ii) a regulatory permit as described in Chapter 5.69, and (iii) a
valid state license, or as otherwise permitted in this code.

B. Retail cannabis businesses shall comply with all regulations set forth in this chapter,
Chapter 5.69, and Chapters 17.34, 17.46, and 17.47, as applicable.

C. Every retail cannabis business shall submit to the city manager a copy of any and all of
its state license(s) and local permits required for its operation. If any other applicable
state license or local permit for a retail cannabis business is denied, suspended, modified,
revoked, or expired, the permittee shall notify the city manager in writing within ten (10)
calendar days.

-51-



ITEM 12.b.

D. Each applicant for a development agreement or CUP issued under this chapter must
submit, along with a development agreement/CUP application, a building facade plan.
Building fagade plans shall include renderings of the exterior building elevations for all
sides of the building. All building fagades shall be tastefully done and in keeping with the
high architectural quality and standards of the City of Coachella. The retail cannabis
business facade and building signs shall be compatible and complimentary to surrounding
businesses and shall add visual quality to the area.

E. Except as required in this chapter, development agreements shall be reviewed, issued,
denied, suspended, revoked, and/or renewed in accordance with Chapter 17.100 entitled
“Development Agreements”, and CUPs shall be reviewed, issued, denied, suspended,
revoked, and/or renewed in accordance with Chapter 17.74 entitled “Conditional Uses”.
If any provision of this chapter conflicts with any provision of Chapters 17.74 or 17.100
of this code, the provision in this chapter shall control.

17.84.050 - Application fee and reimbursement agreement.

At the time an applicant submits an application under this chapter, the applicant shall also supply
an application fee in an amount to be determined by resolution by the city council, an executed
reimbursement agreement on a form provided by the city to fully reimburse the city for all costs,
expenses, and fees, including but not limited to attorney fees and consultant fees, incurred by the
city related to the retail cannabis business, and a deposit in an amount as provided for in the
reimbursement agreement terms.

17.84.055 — Payment of taxes.

All retail cannabis businesses are required to pay all applicable taxes, including a cannabis
business tax pursuant to Chapter 4.31.

17.84.060 - Prohibited operations.

Any retail cannabis business that does not have (i) a development agreement or CUP, (ii) a
regulatory permit required under this code, and (iii) a state license(s) is expressly prohibited in
all city zones and is hereby declared a public nuisance that may be abated by the city and is
subject to all available legal remedies, including, but not limited to civil injunctions. Non-
storefront retailers are prohibited in all zones in the city.

17.84.065 — Permits not transferable.
CUPs may not be transferred, sold, assigned, or bequeathed expressly or by operation of law.

Any attempt to directly or indirectly transfer a retail cannabis business CUP shall be unlawful
and void, and shall automatically revoke the permit.

-52-



ITEM 12.b.

17.84.070 - Grounds for permit denial, suspension, and revocation

Any conditional use permit issued pursuant to the provisions of this chapter may be denied,
suspended, or revoked by the planning commission upon receiving satisfactory evidence that the
applicant or permittee or owner, its agent(s), employee(s), or any person connected or associated
with the applicant or permittee:

A. Has knowingly made false statements in the applicant’s application or in any reports or
other supporting documents furnished by the applicant or permittee;

B. Has failed to maintain a valid state license;

C. Has failed to comply with any applicable provision of the Coachella Municipal Code,
including, but not limited to this chapter, the city’s building, zoning, health, and public
safety regulations;

D. Has failed to comply with any condition imposed on the conditional use permit; or

E. Has allowed the existence of or created a public nuisance in violation of the Coachella
Municipal Code.

17.84.080 - Personal cultivation.

City residents are permitted to cultivate cannabis on private residential property for personal use
and in accordance with state law, subject to the following standards:

A. Outdoor Cultivation.

1. Cultivation for personal use is only permitted on private residential property developed
with at least one (1) residential dwelling unit. No more than six (6) cannabis plants are
permitted to be cultivated at a private residence. Property owners retain the right to
prohibit renters from cultivation and any renter choosing to cultivate shall first obtain
written authorization from the property owner to cultivate on site.

2. Outdoor cultivation is limited to rear and side yard areas and only if screened by a solid
block wall no less than six (6) feet in height.

3. Outdoor cultivation shall not be visible from surrounding public streets or adjoining
properties. As such, cannabis plants may not grow above the height of the property line

walls unless screened by another approved screening method.

4. Outdoor cultivation within six hundred (600) feet of a school, daycare center, or youth
center is prohibited.

B. Indoor Cultivation.

-53-



ITEM 12.b.

Indoor cultivation must have adequate ventilation. Structural ventilation, electrical, gas,
or plumbing changes to accommodate indoor cultivation are required to obtain a building
permit from the city’s building and safety department.

The use of volatile solvents, as defined in California Health and Safety Code Section
11362.3(d), including, but not limited to, butane, propane, xylene, gasoline, kerosene, and
other dangerous and poisonous toxins or carcinogens, are prohibited for indoor
cultivation at a private residence.

17.84.090 - Penalties for violations.

A.

In addition to any other remedy allowed by law, any person who violates a provision of
this chapter is subject to criminal sanctions, civil actions, administrative penalties, permit
suspension, and permit revocation.

Violations of this chapter constitute an infraction or misdemeanor and may be enforced
by any applicable law.

Violations of this chapter are hereby declared to be public nuisances.

Each person is guilty of a separate offense each day a violation is allowed to continue and
every violation of this chapter shall constitute a separate offense and shall be subject to
all remedies.

All remedies prescribed under this chapter shall be cumulative and the election of one or

more remedies shall not bar the city from the pursuit of any other remedy for the purpose
of enforcing the provisions hereof.

-54.-



ITEM 12.b.

Chapter 17.85 - COMMERCIAL CANNABIS ACTIVITY
17.85.010 - Purpose and intent.

It is the purpose and intent of this chapter to regulate the cultivation, manufacturing, testing,
distribution, and transportation of medicinal and nonmedicinal cannabis (including cannabis
products, cannabis concentrate, and edible cannabis products) within the city of Coachella.

The regulations in this chapter are enacted to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the city. These regulations, in compliance with the Compassionate Use Act of 1996
(“CUA”), the Medical Marijuana Program (“MMP”), the Medicinal and Adult Use Cannabis
Regulation and Safety Act (“MAUCRSA”) (collectively, “state law”), do not interfere with the
use and possession of cannabis, as authorized under state law.

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to: (1) allow persons to engage in conduct that
endangers others or causes a public nuisance, (2) allow any activity relating to the cultivation,
manufacturing, testing, or distribution of cannabis that is otherwise illegal under California state
law, or (3) interfere with the use and possession of cannabis as authorized under MAUCRSA.

17.85.020 - Definitions.

Unless the particular provision or context otherwise requires, the definitions and provisions
contained in this section shall govern the construction, meaning, and application of words and
phrases used in this chapter:

“Applicant” means an owner applying for a conditional use permit, desiring to enter into a
development agreement, or applying for any other applicable entitlement under this chapter.

“Cannabis” means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa Linnaeus, Cannabis indica, or Cannabis
ruderalis, whether growing or not; the seeds thereof; the resin, whether crude or purified,
extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture,
or preparation of the plant, its seeds, or resin. “Cannabis” also means the separated resin,
whether crude or purified, obtained from cannabis. “Cannabis” also means marijuana as defined
by Section 11018 of the California Health and Safety Code. “Cannabis” does not include the
mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from the stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of the
plant, any other compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature
stalks (except the resin extracted therefrom), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of the plant
which is incapable of germination. For the purpose of this chapter, “cannabis” does not mean
“industrial hemp” as defined by Section 81000 of the California Food and Agricultural Code or
Section 11018.5 of the California Health and Safety Code.

“Cannabis concentrate” means cannabis that has undergone a process to concentrate one or more
active cannabinoids, thereby increasing the product’s potency. Resin from granular trichomes
from a cannabis plant is a concentrate for purposes of this division. A cannabis concentrate is not
considered food, as defined by Section 109935 of the Health and Safety Code, or a drug, as
defined by Section 109925 of the California Health and Safety Code.

-55-



ITEM 12.b.

“Cannabis products” has the same meaning as marijuana products in Section 11018.1 of the
California Health and Safety Code. When the term “cannabis” is used in this chapter, it shall
include “cannabis products.”

“City manager” means the city manager of the city of Coachella or designee.

“Commercial cannabis activity” includes the cultivation, manufacture, laboratory testing, and
distribution (including possession, processing, storing, and labeling incidental to each activity, as
applicable) of cannabis and cannabis products. For purposes of this chapter, “commercial
cannabis activity” does not include delivery or retail sale of cannabis or cannabis products.
Zoning restrictions on cannabis retailers and microbusinesses can be found in Chapters 17.34,
17.46, 17.47 and 17.84.

“Conditional Use Permit” or “CUP” means a conditional use permit issued under this chapter.

“Cultivate” or “cultivation” means any commercial activity involving the planting, growing,
harvesting, drying, curing, grading, or trimming of cannabis. A cannabis nursery is considered a
“cultivation” use.

“Customer” means a natural person 21 years of age or older or a natural person 18 years of age
or older who possesses a physician’s recommendation, or a primary caregiver.

“Delivery” means the commercial transfer of cannabis or cannabis products to a customer.
y

“Development agreement” means an agreement entered into between the city and an applicant
under this chapter pursuant to Section 65865 of the California Government Code.

“Distribution” means the procurement, wholesale sale, and transport of cannabis and cannabis
products between entities permitted or licensed under this chapter, another local California
jurisdiction, or state law.

“Edible cannabis product” means manufactured cannabis that is intended to be used, in whole or
in part, for human consumption, including, but not limited to, chewing gum, but excluding
products set forth in Division 15 of the California Food and Agricultural Code. An edible
cannabis product is not considered food as defined by Section 109935 of the California Health
and Safety Code or a drug as defined by Section 109925 of the California Health and Safety
Code. When the term “cannabis” is used in this chapter, it shall include “edible cannabis
products.”

“Indoor” means within a fully enclosed and secure building.

“Manufacture” means to compound, blend, extract, infuse or otherwise make or prepare a
cannabis product.

“Manufacturer” means a permittee that conducts the production, preparation, propagation, or
compounding of cannabis or cannabis products either directly or indirectly or by extraction

-56-



ITEM 12.b.

methods, or independently by means of chemical synthesis, or by a combination of extraction
and chemical synthesis at a fixed location that packages or repackages cannabis or cannabis
products or labels or relabels its container.

“Microbusiness,” for purposes of this chapter, means a commercial business that engages in
cultivation of cannabis on an area less than ten thousand (10,000) square feet, Level 1
manufacturing, and distribution, provided such permittee can demonstrate compliance with all
requirements imposed by this chapter and State law on licensed cultivators, distributors, and
Level 1 manufacturers to the extent the permittee engages in such activities. Level 1
manufacturing means manufacturing with no solvents or with nonvolatile solvents.

“Nursery” means a permittee that produces only clones, immature plants, seeds, and other
agricultural products used specifically for the propagation and cultivation of cannabis.

“Operation” means any act for which a permit is required under the provisions of this chapter, or
any commercial transfer of cannabis or cannabis products.

“Owner” means any of the following:

(1) A person with an aggregate ownership interest of twenty percent (20%) or more in the
applicant, unless the interest is solely a security, lien, or encumbrance;

(2) The chief executive officer of a nonprofit or other entity;

3) A member of the board of directors of a nonprofit;

4) The trustee(s) and all persons who have control of the trust and/or the commercial
cannabis business that is held in trust.

5) An individual entitled to a share of at least twenty percent (20%) of the profits of the
commercial cannabis business;

(6) An individual that will be participating in the direction, control, or management of the
person applying for a permit. Such an individual includes any of the following: a general partner
of a commercial cannabis business that is organized as a partnership; a non-member manager or
managing member of a commercial cannabis business that is organized as a limited liability
company; an officer or director of a commercial cannabis business that is organized as a
corporation.

“Permittee” means the individual or applicant to whom a conditional use permit has been issued
under this chapter. A permittee includes all representatives, agents, parent entities, or subsidiary
entities of the permittee.

“Person” includes any individual, firm, co-partnership, joint venture, association, corporation,
limited liability company, estate, trust, business trust, receiver, syndicate, or any other group or
combination acting as a unit, and the plural as well as the singular.

“Retailer” means a person or entity that sells cannabis or cannabis products to customers.

“Shared-use facility” means a premises registered by a primary manufacturing permittee at
which multiple cannabis manufacturers may operate at separate times.

-57-



ITEM 12.b.

“Testing” means subjecting cannabis to laboratory testing for active compounds and purity prior
to distribution for consumption.

“Testing laboratory” means a laboratory, facility, or entity in California, that offers or performs
tests of cannabis or cannabis products and that is both of the following: (1) Accredited by an
accrediting body that is independent from all other persons involved in commercial cannabis
activity in the state; and (2) Licensed by the California Bureau of Marijuana (or Cannabis)
Control within the California Department of Consumer Affairs (when such licenses begin to be
issued).

Words and phrases not specifically defined in this code shall have the meaning ascribed to them
as defined in the following sources:

A. CUA (California Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5);

B. MMP (California Health and Safety Code Sections 11362.7 through 11362.83); and
C. MAUCRSA (California Business and Professions Code Sections 26000 et seq.).
17.85.030 - Commercial cannabis activity permitted.

Commercial cannabis activity permitted under this chapter includes cultivation, manufacture
(including shared-use facilities), distribution, and testing (including possession, processing,
storing, and labeling incidental to such activity). Prior to engaging in any such commercial
cannabis activity in the city, one must obtain either a development agreement or conditional use
permit (CUP), and a regulatory permit as required by this code, subject to the provisions of the
CUA, MMP, MAUCRSA, and any other state laws pertaining to cannabis.

17.85.040 - Conditional use permit or development agreement required.

Prior to initiating operations and as a continuing requisite to operating a commercial cannabis
activity, the applicant shall obtain a validly issued CUP as provided in Chapter 17.74 entitled
“Conditional Uses” of this municipal code or enter into a fully executed development agreement
agreed to by the city council. If any provision of this chapter conflicts with any provision of
Chapter 17.74 of this code, the provision in this chapter shall control. An applicant must obtain a
separate CUP for each commercial cannabis activity the applicant wishes to operate. Each CUP
will include a condition of approval requiring that the permittee also obtain and maintain a
cultivation, manufacture, distribution, or testing laboratory regulatory permit required by this
code.

17.85.050 - Commercial cannabis activity—Permitted locations and standards.
A. Commercial cannabis activity may be located in any wrecking yard zone (M-W) or

industrial park overlay zone (IP) in the city, upon issuance of a CUP and a regulatory
permit.

-58-



ITEM 12.b.

B. Commercial cannabis activity in the M-W zone should be restricted to a site having a
minimum of five (5) acres in size, with a minimum paved street frontage of two hundred
fifty (250) feet. Commercial cannabis activity in the IP zone is restricted to sites having a
minimum project area of ten (10) acres and a minimum lot size or grouping of lots of at
least five (5) acres.

C. Commercial cannabis activity must be served by municipal water and sewer services.

D. Commercial cannabis activity shall be located a minimum distance of six hundred (600)
feet away from any residentially-zoned lot. The distance shall be measured at the nearest
point between any part of the building containing the cannabis use and any lot line of the
residential use.

E. Commercial cannabis activity may not be established in the M-W zone on a multi-tenant
industrial park or business park site existing on the effective date of this ordinance. A
CUP to develop a new stand-alone commercial cannabis activity facility or a multi-tenant
facility within a minimum site area of five (5) acres may be pursued.

F. Commercial cannabis activity shall not result in the creation of any odors detectable from
anywhere off the property boundaries. The use of carbon filtration systems and other
mitigation measures shall be used on all commercial cannabis activities that cause such
odors.

G. Testing laboratories may be located in the general commercial zone (C-G) in addition to
the M-W zone and IP overlay zone with a CUP, but are not required to meet the two
hundred fifty (250) foot paved street frontage requirement in subsection (B) or the
restrictions set forth in subsections (D) and (E) of this section.

17.85.055 — Application fee and reimbursement agreement.

At the time an applicant submits an application under this chapter, the applicant shall also supply
an application fee in an amount to be determined by resolution by the city council, an executed
reimbursement agreement on a form provided by the city to fully reimburse the city for all fiscal
impacts, costs, expenses, and fees, including but not limited to attorney fees and consultant fees,
incurred by the city related to the commercial cannabis activity, and a deposit in an amount as
provided for in the reimbursement agreement terms.

17.85.060 - State law compliance.

A. No commercial cannabis activity shall operate unless it is in possession of all applicable
state and local licenses or permits, except as otherwise permitted by state and/or local
law.

B. Every commercial cannabis activity shall submit to the city manager a copy of any and

all of its state and local licenses and permits required for its operation.

-59-



ITEM 12.b.

C. If any other applicable state or local license or permit for a commercial cannabis activity
is denied, suspended, modified, revoked, or expired, the permittee shall notify the city
manager in writing within ten (10) calendar days.

17.85.070 - Payment of taxes.

All commercial cannabis activity is required to pay all applicable taxes, including a cannabis
business tax pursuant to Chapter 4.31.

17.85.075 — Permits not transferable.

CUPs may not be transferred, sold, assigned or bequeathed expressly or by operation by law.
Any attempt to directly or indirectly transfer a cannabis business CUP shall be unlawful and
void, and shall automatically revoke the permit.

17.85.080 - Prohibited operations.

Any commercial cannabis activity that does not have both (i) a development agreement or CUP

and (ii) a regulatory permit required under this code is expressly prohibited in all city zones and
is hereby declared a public nuisance that may be abated by the city and is subject to all available
legal remedies, including but not limited to civil injunctions.

17.85.090 - Commercial cannabis cultivation, manufacturing, testing, processing—Interior only.

All commercial cannabis cultivation, manufacturing, processing and testing shall be conducted
only in the interior of enclosed structures, facilities and buildings. All cultivation operations,
including all cannabis plants, at any stage of growth, shall not be visible from the exterior of any
structure, facility or building containing cultivation. All cultivation, manufacturing, testing and
processing must take place indoors, within a permanent structure that is enclosed on all sides.
Outdoor cultivation, manufacturing, testing, and processing are prohibited. Portable greenhouses
and/or non-permanent enclosures shall not be used for cultivation unless they are placed inside of
a permanent structure that is enclosed on all sides.

17.85.100 - Penalties for violations.
A. In addition to any other remedy allowed by law, any person who violates a provision of

this chapter is subject to criminal sanctions, civil actions for injunctive relief or
otherwise, and administrative penalties.

B. Violations of this chapter constitute an infraction or misdemeanor and may be enforced
by any applicable law.
C. Violations of this chapter are hereby declared to be public nuisances.

-60-



ITEM 12.b.

Each person is guilty of a separate offense each day a violation is allowed to continue and
every violation of this chapter shall constitute a separate offense and shall be subject to
all remedies.

All remedies prescribed under this chapter shall be cumulative and the election of one or

more remedies shall not bar the city from the pursuit of any other remedy for the purpose
of enforcing the provisions hereof.

-61-






ITEM 12.c.






ITEM 12.c.

STAFF REPORT
5/22/2019
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer
SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with NRO Engineering Amendment #5 in the

amount of $150,000 for Engineering Plan Check Services

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with NRO
Engineering Amendment #5 in the amount of $150,000 for Engineering Plan Check Services.

BACKGROUND:

NRO Engineering currently has a Professional Service Agreement (PSA) with the City of
Coachella to provide Engineering Plan Check Services. These services include the review of
subdivision improvement drawings and final maps associated with private development within
the City of Coachella. As per this agreement, NRO Engineering is paid 70% of the plan check
fees received by the City. Since January 2013 plan check activity has increased substantially.
Therefore, the staff is recommending NRO to cover the increase in plan check services. NRO
will comply with all City requirements, City standards and conditions of approval.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Approval of the Professional Service Agreement Amendment #5, in the amount of $150,000,
with NRO Engineering will have no adverse impact on the General Fund. The proposed PSA
will be paid by the revenue collected from the plan check fees within the Engineering
Department

-65-






ITEM 12.c.

CITY OF COACHELLA
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
AMENDMENT #5

1. PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of May, 2019 by and between
the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of
California with its principal place of business at 1515 6™ Street, Coachella, California 92236
(“City”) and NRO Engineering, with its principal place of business at 41-945 Boardwalk, Suite
H, Palm Desert, CA 92211 (“Consultant”). City and Consultant are sometimes individually
referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.”

2. RECITALS.
2.1 Consultant.

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain
professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement. Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing Professional Services to
public clients and is a licensed civil engineer in the State of California. NRO is also familiar with
the plans of the City.

2.2 Project.

City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the Engineering Plan Check
Services for the Engineering Department as set forth in this Agreement.

3. TERMS.
3.1  Scope of Services and Term.

3.1.1 General Scope of Services. Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to
the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work
necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional engineering services necessary for the
Project (“Services”). The Services are more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached
hereto and incorporated herein by reference. All Services shall be subject to, and performed in
accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules, and regulations.

3.1.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from May 15, 2019 to June 30
2020, unless earlier terminated as provided herein. Consultant shall complete the Services
within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and deadlines.
The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if necessary to
complete the Services.

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007
-67-



ITEM 12.c.

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant.

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor. The
Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision. Consultant will determine
the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this
Agreement. City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.
Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of
this Agreement. Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on
behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under
Consultant’s exclusive direction and control. Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other
amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this
Agreement and as required by law. Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and
obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security
taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’
compensation insurance.

3.2.2 Schedule of Services. Consultant shall perform the Services
expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of
Services set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
Consultant represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the
Services in conformance with such conditions. In order to facilitate Consultant’s conformance
with the Schedule, City shall respond to Consultant’s submittals in a timely manner. Upon
request of City, Consultant shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to
meet the Schedule of Services.

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements. All work prepared by
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of City.

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel. Consultant has represented to City that
certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement. Should
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of
at least equal competence upon written approval of City. In the event that City and Consultant
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate this
Agreement for cause. As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the
Services in a manner acceptable to the City, or who are determined by the City to be
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the
Consultant at the request of the City. The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are
as follows: Noel Owsley at NRO Engineering.

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007
-68-



ITEM 12.c.

3.2.5 City’s Representative. The City hereby designates Jonathan Hoy P.E.,
City Engineer, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this
Agreement (“City’s Representative”). City’s Representative shall have the power to act on
behalf of the City for all purposes under this Contract. Consultant shall not accept direction or
orders from any person other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee.

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative. Consultant hereby designates Noel Owsley,
or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement
(“Consultant’s Representative”).  Consultant’s Representative shall have full authority to
represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement. The
Consultant’s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and
attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures
and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement.

3.2.7 Coordination of Services. Consultant agrees to work closely with City
staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other
staff at all reasonable times.

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees. Consultant shall perform
all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the
standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the
State of California. Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional
calling necessary to perform the Services. Consultant warrants that all employees and
subconsultants shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to
them. Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and subconsultants have all licenses,
permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the
Services, including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement. As provided for in the indemnification
provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without
reimbursement from the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are
caused by the Consultant’s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein. Any
employee of the Consultant or its sub-consultants who is determined by the City to be
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat
to the safety of persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services
in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant
and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project.

3.2.8.1 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Consultant shall
perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section
3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Consultant shall also perform the Services in strict
accordance with any completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits “A” or “B”
attached hereto, or which may be separately agreed upon in writing by the City and Consultant
(“Performance Milestones™). Consultant agrees that if the Services are not completed within the
aforementioned Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed
pursuant to provisions of this Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the
City will suffer damage. Pursuant to Government Code Section 53069.85, Consultant shall pay
to the City as fixed and liquidated damages the sum of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per day

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007
-69-



ITEM 12.c.

for each and every calendar day of delay beyond the Performance Time or beyond any Project
Milestones established pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations. Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and
in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting
the performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall
give all notices required by law. Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such laws and
regulations in connection with Services. If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to be
contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City,
Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom. Consultant shall defend,
indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, officers, employees, and agents free and
harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or
regulations.

3.2.10 Insurance.

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance. Consultant shall not commence
Work under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has
secured all insurance required under this section. In addition, Consultant shall not allow any
subconsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory
to the City that the sub consultant has secured all insurance required under this section.

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements. Consultant shall, at its expense,
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of
the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants.
Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance
for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum
levels of coverage:

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as
broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability:
Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto);
and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as
required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance.

(B)  Minimum Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain
limits no less than: (1) General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal
injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with
general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit
shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident
for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s
Liability: Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California. Employer’s Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007
-70-



ITEM 12.c.

3.2.10.3 Professional Liability.  Consultant shall procure and
maintain, and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years
following completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their
profession. Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim, and shall
be endorsed to include contractual liability.

3.2.10.4 Insurance Endorsements. The insurance policies shall
contain the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or
approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies:

(A)  General Liability. The general liability policy shall be
endorsed to state that: (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in
connection with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall
stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying
coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way.

(B)  Automobile Liability. The automobile liability policy shall
be endorsed to state that: (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation,
maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the
Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be
primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s
scheduled underlying coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the
Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way.

(C)  Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability
Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the
insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant.

(D)  All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that: (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced
or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other
provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

3.2.10.5 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations. All
insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions. In

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007
-71-



ITEM 12.c.

addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection
afforded to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

3.2.10.6 Deductibles and  Self-Insurance Retentions. Any
deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. Consultant
shall guarantee that, at the option of the City, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense
expenses.

3.2.10.7 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with
insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A: VIII, licensed to do business in
California, and satisfactory to the City.

3.2.10.8 Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish City
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this
Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City. The certificates and endorsements for each
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its
behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested. All certificates and
endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences. The City
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any
time.

3.2.10.9 Reporting of Claims. Consultant shall report to the City, in
addition to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in
connection with the Services under this Agreement.

3.2.11 Safety. Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid
injury or damage to any person or property. In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at
all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations,
and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature
of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed. Safety precautions as
applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to: (A) adequate life protection and life saving
equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and
subconsultants, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks,
confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices,
equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or
injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety
measures.

3.3  Feesand Payments.

3.3.1 Compensation. Consultant shall receive compensation, including
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth
in Exhibit ”C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The total compensation
shall not exceed One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($150,000.00) without

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007
-72-



ITEM 12.c.

written approval of City’s Engineer. Extra Work may be authorized, as described below, and if
authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this Agreement.

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation. Consultant shall submit to City a monthly
itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by
Consultant. The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the
initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate,
through the date of the statement. City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review
the statement and pay all approved charges thereon.

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses. Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any
expenses unless authorized in writing by City.

3.3.4 Extra Work. At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may
request that Consultant perform Extra Work. As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work
which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which
the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.
Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization
from City’s Representative.

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages. Consultant is aware of the requirements of California
Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations,
Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of
prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” and
“maintenance” projects. If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public
works” or “maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total
compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage
Laws. City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in
effect at the commencement of this Agreement. Consultant shall make copies of the prevailing
rates of per diem wages for each craft; classification or type of worker needed to execute the
Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Consultant’s
principal place of business and at the project site. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold
the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007
-73-



ITEM 12.c.

3.4  Accounting Records.

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection. Consultant shall maintain complete and
accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement. All such
records shall be clearly identifiable. Consultant shall allow a representative of City during
normal business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any
other documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all
work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three
(3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement.

3.5 General Provisions.

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement.

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination. City may, by written notice to
Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by
giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof,
at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination. Upon termination,
Consultant shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to
City, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation. Consultant may not terminate
this Agreement except for cause.

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated as provided
herein, City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data
and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the performance of
Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall be required to provide such document and other
information within fifteen (15) days of the request.

3.5.1.3 Additional Services. In the event this Agreement is terminated in
whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it
may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated.

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices. All notices permitted or required under this
Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose:

Consultant:

NRO Engineering
41-945 Boardwalk, Suite H
Palm Desert, CA 92211
Attn: Noel Owsley
City:
City of Coachella
1515 6™ Street
Coachella, CA 92236
Attn: Jonathan Hoy P.E., City Engineer

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007
74-



ITEM 12.c.

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight
(48) hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at
its applicable address. Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice
occurred, regardless of the method of service.

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality.

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property. This
Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or
sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans,
specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in
any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data
magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be
prepared by Consultant under this Agreement (“Documents & Data”). Consultant shall require
all subconsultants to agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license
for any Documents & Data the subconsultant prepares under this Agreement. Consultant
represents and warrants that Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents &
Data. Consultant makes no such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data
which were prepared by design professionals other than Consultant or provided to Consultant by
the City. City shall not be limited in any way in its use of the Documents and Data at any time,
provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement shall be at City’s
sole risk.

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans,
procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written
information, and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in
connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant.
Such materials shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used by Consultant for any
purposes other than the performance of the Services. Nor shall such materials be disclosed to
any person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project. Nothing
furnished to Consultant which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has
become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential. Consultant shall not use
City’s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or
the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other
similar medium without the prior written consent of City.

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts. The Parties shall fully cooperate with one
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary,
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

3.5.,5 Attorney’s Fees. If either party commences an action against the other
party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the
losing party reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action.

3.5.6 Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall
defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007
-75-



ITEM 12.c.

free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability,
loss, damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any
manner arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to any negligence, errors or omissions,
recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents,
consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the
Consultant’s Services, including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages,
expert witness fees, and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Consultant shall
defend, at Consultant’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or
other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. Consultant shall pay and satisfy any
judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers,
employees, agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding. Consultant
shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers,
for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in
enforcing the indemnity herein provided. Consultant’s obligation to indemnify shall not be
restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its directors, official’s officers,
employees, agents, or volunteers.

3.5.7 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations,
understandings or agreements. This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by
both parties.

3.5.8 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of California. Venue shall be in Riverside County.

3.5.9 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for each and every provision of
this Agreement.

3.5.10 City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants. City reserves right to employ
other consultants in connection with this Project.

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on the
successors and assigns of the parties.

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer. Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate or
transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the
prior written consent of the City. Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees,
hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted
assignment, hypothecation or transfer.

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions. Since the Parties or their agents have
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party. Any
term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not
work days. All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and
subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement. All references to

10
ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007

-76-



ITEM 12.c.

City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise
specified in this Agreement. The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope,
content or intent of this Agreement.

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification. No supplement, modification or amendment
of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties.

3.5.15 Waiver. No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other
default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition. No waiver, benefit,
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any
contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise.

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no intended third party
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely
for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Consultant warrants that it has not
paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. Consultant further
agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic
Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the
Services. For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this
Agreement without liability. For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of
City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this
Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom.

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment. Consultant represents that it is an equal
opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry,
sex or age. Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff
or termination. Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority
Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines
currently in effect or hereinafter enacted.

3.5.20 Labor Certification. By its signature hereunder, Consultant certifies that it
is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every
employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services.

11
ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007

-77-



ITEM 12.c.

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement. Consultant has all requisite power and
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement. Each Party
warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party.

3.5.22 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of
which shall constitute an original.

3.6 Subcontracting.

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of
the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written
approval of City. Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all
provisions stipulated in this Agreement.

CITY OF COACHELLA NRO Engineering
By: By:

Bill Pattison, City Manager Noel Owsley, Owner
Attest:

Carlos Campos, City Attorney

Attest:

City Clerk

12
ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007

-78-



ITEM 12.c.

EXHIBIT “A”

SCOPE OF SERVICES

SIMILAR SERVICES

Staff at NRO Engineering is currently providing Plan Check Services 1o the Cities
of Blythe, Indio and the Town of Yucca Valley.

We belleve that il is the strength of our design abilities in preparing improvement
plans and maps, and our experience in providing plan check services, which will -
enable us to objectively serve the interests of the City of Coachella. Our plan
checking philosophy includes many elements that atiempt to:

& Reduce the City's liability (fisk management).
o Encourape q’unli'y designs without mandating personal prefarence

o Develop a rapport with the Design Engineer whenever possible to -
_nr:amumw effective communication, especially in regard to design
intent.

s Treat the Design Engineer as we like to be treated by pilan
checkers.

¢ Perform thorough plan checks to minimize the total number of plan
checks for the project. '

SCOPE OF WORK

The anticipated Scope of Work would include the following:

1. Review of grading and improvement plans including strest, drainage, traffic .
signal and signing and striping plans. Included in the plan check procegs will be
a .rqvhw of the hydrology and hydraulic calculations, preliminary drainage
studies, FEMA requiremants, ADA requiremenis and the connections fo existing

gystems.

All plan checks will be performed to ensure all City requirements, and Conditions
of Approval, are adhered Io, and all proposed Improvements are designed to City
standarde when applicable. The City's Plan Check-List will be used as a basis of .
determining plan completeness.

2. Perform additional services requested by the City.

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007

-79-



ITEM 12.c.

PERFORMANCE OF WORK

Included in the above scope of work, NRQO Engineering will also;

1. Provide for pickup and delivery of all projects during the review process,
2. Provide plan chacking services in a timely manner,

3. Every effort will be taken to ensure thorough and comprehensive checks are
provided to minimize the need for additional plans checks.

4. In sddition o ensuring accuracy of the design, additional overview will be
provided to examine the overall concept before checking details of the design; to
peint out any conflicts, mistakes, or omissions on the plans; to call for re-design
of any portion of the plans that appear to ba Impractical to construct, will be
potentially unsafe, will be a maintenance problem, will not function properly, or .
do not appear to meet the Intent of the City's requirements; to identify
construction problems that may need special traffic controls, street closures, etc.:
and to ensure that dedications and sassments to the City are obtained.

APFROVAL PROCESS

For any special studiss an approval letter will be supplied 1o the City. For
improvemaent plans a “Recommended for Approval” stamp and signature on the -
plans by the Registered Civil Engineer supervising the plan checking will be
added to the approved mylar originals.

STAFFING

All the proposed plan check effort will be supervised by Noel Owsley, P.E.L.S.
Mr. Owsley will be in charge of insuring the adequacy and unifermity of the plan
checks, the adherence to the City's required scheduling and all contacta with the

City or the Deslgn Engineers.
A resume for Mr. Owsley is included at the end of these qualifications.

STAFF AVAILABILITY

Mr. Oweley will be dedicated to the improvement plan checks full time. Mr.
Singer and additional staff will be incorporated as required by the plan check
volumas.

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007

-80-



ITEM 12.c.

PLAN CHECK TIMES ,I

Flirst (1st) Plan Check drawings shall be returned to the City
within two (2) weeks of receipt by NRO ENGINEERING. . Recheck
Mork will be completed within -Gne (1) week of receipt by NRO ENGINEERING .

FAMILIARITY WITH ADA REQUIREMENTS

From our plan check experience with other egencies, we are familiar with ADA
requiremants for public Improvements. We have also prepared Standard Plans
for the City of Blythe and the Town of Yucca Valley, and as such were required
to ensure thal the proposed standards met ADA requirements.

INSURANCE COVERAGE

NRO Engineering carres $1,000000 General and Professional Llability
Insurance. A copy of our Liability Insurance is included within. 1n addilion, we

carry $500,000 automobile coverage.

As a scle proprietorship with no employees we are not required to carry
Workman's Compensation insurance.

ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007

-81-



ITEM 12.c.

EXHIBIT “B”

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

As Needed

B-1
ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007

-82-



ITEM 12.c.

EXHIBIT “C”

COMPENSATION

City shall compensate NRO Engineering for services rendered at the rate of 70% of the City’s
Fee Schedule for plan check services from applicants whose engineering plans NRO reviews.

C-1
ORANGE\CCAMPOS\34530. 1 BBK: MARCH 2007

-83-






ITEM 12.d.






ITEM 12.d.

STAFF REPORT
7/10/2019
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Andrea J. Carranza, Deputy City Clerk, and
Mark Walwick, IT Manager
SUBJECT: Authorize the City Manager to enter into an Agreement with Municode Meetings

at an annual fee of $6,400.00 to replace the discontinued Sire Technologies for
the purchase, implementation, and training of Online Meeting and Agenda
Management Services

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Municode Meetings at an annual fee
of $6,400.00 to replace the discontinued Sire Technologies for the purchase, implementation, and
training of online meeting and agenda management services.

BACKGROUND:

In October 2009, the City approved an agreement with Sire Technologies to streamline the
agenda management into an electronic system. The City implemented the system in June 2010.

Electronic agenda management systems are designed to create, approve and track agenda items
for upcoming and past Council and Planning Commission meetings. This process creates an
automated "paperless" agenda. Functions like adding, modifying, and approving agenda items
are controlled in a well-organized systematic environment. Workflow options allow users to
control the review and approval process for each item with a complete history for tracking
purposes.

At the end of 2012, Hyland purchased Sire. In 2014, Hyland then discontinued support and
maintenance for Sire, urging their customers to migrate to their, at that time, yet to be fully
developed system called OnBase. Most recently, the City is seeing Sire’s productivity decline as
it becomes obsolete while lacking maintenance, upgrades and the inability to create certain
meetings, such as the City’s two JPAs.

Over the past five years, staff reviewed demonstrations, network compatibility, obtained quotes

from vendors, surveyed several cities, and narrowed down the choices to three vendors that serve
many governmental agencies - Municode, OnBase and iCompass.

-87-



ITEM 12.d.

Several cities interviewed spoke very favorably of Municode Meetings because the system is
user-friendly, cloud-based and has excellent support. The City is an existing customer of
Municode, the codifier and web host of our Municipal Code.

Municode Meetings is a fully integrated meeting management package that allows Council to
establish roll call and vote via tablet, iPad or laptop. Features include unlimited meetings,
templates and users, as well as creating agendas and packets. The Microsoft Azure cloud-based
program will create less strain on the City’s network. Cloud-based will increase capacity and
enhance functionality without having to commit to potentially expensive infrastructure costs or

increase in-house support staff.

The application will continue to tie directly into the City's website allowing the public to view

agenda items, staff reports, and backup documentation online.

Staff obtained proposals from Municode Meetings, OnBase and iCompass systems:

Municode Meetings OnBase iCompass

$6,400.00 annually $35,540.00 initial cost (this $12,400.00 annually, with

(All inclusive) includes a discount and the additional component
$9,240 annual support) upgrades

FISCAL IMPACT:

An appropriation for this expenditure is included in the 2019/2020 fiscal year budget.

-88-




ITEM 12.d.
MEETING & AGENDA MANAGEMENT

Quote: Coachella, California

munigode

CONNECTING YOU &§ YOUR COMMUNITY

Leon Rogers

PO Box 2235 Tallahassee, FL 32316
850.692.7708 leon@municode.com

-89-



ITEM 12.d.

June 11, 2019

Dear Andrea:

Thank you for the opportunity to present Coachella with our quote for online meeting and agenda management
services. Our Municode Meetings solution will streamline your process to create, approve and post meeting
agendas and minutes.

Municode has developed a portfolio of online services that are tailored for local government agencies. We have
worked with cities, towns, villages, counties and other local government agencies for over sixty-five years
continually striving to make your job easier. When it comes to the meeting management process, our solution is
simple and straight-forward, yet robust enough to satisfy the needs of our largest municipalities.

We are also working on an exciting product roadmap to seamlessly integrate Municode Meetings with our suite of
online municipal solutions. The first of these integrations that is now complete is between our Municode
Meetings solution and Municode Web. Meetings created in Municode Meetings auto-post to your Municode Web
website calendar. This integration also includes unified search — your meeting agendas and minutes are
searchable directly from the website.

We are also building a powerful integration that will enable you to mark ordinance agenda items as ‘approved’
within Municode Meetings and have them auto-scheduled for supplementation and publishing to your Municode
NEXT Online Code of Ordinances.

These are just a few of the innovative integrations and features on our product roadmap.

We are thrilled at the opportunity to partner with Coachella on such an important initiative.

Sincerely,
Brian Gilday

President, Website Division

-90-



ITEM 12.d.

Base Features

& Unlimited Meetings & Voting Support (verbal vote, vote by show
& Unlimited Meeting Agenda Templates of hands, or legislator-initiated voting via
& Unlimited Users tablet/iPad/laptop)
3 Create Meetings & Roll Cal
© Submit/Add Agenda Items Dk SeIf—s'ervice video time stampi.ng —you can
add timestamps of your meeting agenda
‘3 Attach agenda item files items to your YouTube meeting videos
‘9 Create Agendas & Integration with Municode Web website
3 Create Agenda Packets (meetings/calendar/search integration)
3 Approve Items with Approval Workflow 9 99.95% up-time guarantee, telephone
& Automatically Publishing to the Web — support 8AM-8PM Eastern
Agenda, Agenda Packet, Minutes & Email support with one-hour response time
3 Create Meeting Minutes during working hours
& Public In-Meeting Display (presentation ‘& Emergency 24x7 support
screen to display current agenda item and & Up to 3 hours of webinar refresher training
voting results) per year

Service and Support

¥ Guaranteed Uptime
We will guarantee service uptime of 99.95%. In the event this service level is not met within a given month,
you will receive a credit for that month's service.

€ 24x7 Customer support:
We will provide you contact numbers to reach us 24x7x365 for catastrophic site issues. We will also be
available from Monday to Friday 8AM-8PM EST via email and phone to handle routine questions from staff.

® Security upgrades:
We will perform security upgrades and other optimizations during off-hours, typically between the hours of
12-3AM PST, if such work requires your meetings to be off-line. We will provide at least 14 days’ notice for
any non-emergency maintenance that requires down-time.

@ Site Monitoring and Site Recovery:
Our auto-monitoring software continually monitors performance and instantly alerts us when problems occur.
We act as soon as possible and no later than two hours after problems are detected.

91-



ITEM 12.d.

Annual Subscription $6,400 per year

One-time Project Setup no charge

Configure Boards/Committees/Commissions
Configure Meeting Agenda Templates

Setup Users, Roles, and Permissions

e Conduct initial training — web teleconference

Additional Options

O “Hands free” YouTube Video time stamping (up to 36 meetings) $1,800 per year
PAYMENT SCHEDULE
e Sign contract 50% of annual subscription fee
e Configure system — ready for training (annual subscription begins) 50% of annual subscription fee
Notes

e No long-term commitments required. We will earn your trust. You may cancel service at any time.
e Guaranteed pricing. Hosting and Support fees will not increase for first three years.

e Annual hosting and support fees starting year four will increase according to the previous year-ending
Consumer Price Index (CPI) for All Urban Consumers.

e Payment schedule will be adjusted accordingly based on selected optional features.

-02-



ITEM 12.d.

This agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is entered between Coachella California (“CLIENT”) and Municipal Code
Corporation (“CONSULTANT”).

1. Term of AGREEMENT. This AGREEMENT shall commence effective the date signed by the CLIENT. It shall
automatically renew annually. This AGREEMENT shall terminate upon the CLIENT's providing CONSULTANT with
sixty (60) days' advance written notice.

2. Compensation. It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto, that the CLIENT shall pay the
CONSULTANT for services based on the payment schedule provided as set forth in the section marked “Payment
Schedule”. Payment will be made to CONSULTANT within thirty (30) days of the receipt of approved invoices for
services rendered.

3. Scope of Services. CONSULTANT’s services under this AGREEMENT shall consist of services as detailed in the
attached proposal including appendices (“SERVICES”). SERVICES may be amended or modified upon the mutual
written AGREEMENT of the parties.

4. Integration. This AGREEMENT, along with the SERVICES to be performed contain the entire agreement
between and among the parties, integrate all the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto,
and supersede all prior written or oral discussions or agreements between the parties or their predecessors-in-
interest with respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof.

5. Warranty. CONSULTANT warrants that any services provided hereunder will be performed in a professional
and workmanlike manner and the functionality of the services will not be materially decreased during the term.

6. Liability. CONSULTANT's total liability arising out of any acts, omissions, errors, events, or default of
CONSULTANT and/or any of its employees or contractors shall be limited by the provisions of the AGREEMENT
and further limited to a maximum amount equal to the fees received by CONSULTANT from CLIENT under this
AGREEMENT.

7. Termination. This AGREEMENT shall terminate upon the CLIENT's providing CONSULTANT with sixty (60) days'
advance written notice. In the event the AGREEMENT is terminated by the CLIENT's issuance of said written
notice of intent to terminate, the CONSULTANT shall pay CLIENT a pro-rated refund of any prepaid service fees
(for the period from the date of the termination through to the end of the term). If, however, CONSULTANT has
substantially or materially breached the standards and terms of this AGREEMENT, the CLIENT shall have any
remedy or right of set-off available at law and equity.

8. Independent Contractor. CONSULTANT is an independent contractor. Notwithstanding any provision
appearing in this AGREEMENT, all personnel assigned by CONSULTANT to perform services under the terms of this
AGREEMENT shall be employees or agents of CONSULTANT for all purposes. CONSULTANT shall make no
representation that it is the employee of the CLIENT for any purposes.

9. Confidentiality. (a) Confidential Information. For purposes of this AGREEMENT, the term "Confidential
Information" means all information that is not generally known by the public and that: is obtained by
CONSULTANT from CLIENT, or that is learned, discovered, developed, conceived, originated, or prepared by
CONSULTANT during the process of performing this AGREEMENT, and relates directly to the business or assets of
CLIENT. The term "Confidential Information" shall include, but shall not be limited to: inventions, discoveries,
trade secrets, and know-how; computer software code, designs, routines, algorithms, and structures; product
information; research and development information; lists of clients and other information relating thereto;
financial data and information; business plans and processes; and any other information of CLIENT that CLIENT
informs CONSULTANT, or that CONSULTANT should know by virtue of its position, is to be kept confidential.

-03.



ITEM 12.d.

(b) Obligation of Confidentiality. During the term of this AGREEMENT, and always thereafter, CONSULTANT
agrees that it will not disclose to others, use for its own benefit or for the benefit of anyone other than CLIENT, or
otherwise appropriate or copy, any Confidential Information except as required in the performance of its
obligations to CLIENT hereunder. The obligations of CONSULTANT under this paragraph shall not apply to any
information that becomes public knowledge through no fault of CONSULTANT.

10. Assignment. Neither party may assign or subcontract its rights or obligations under this AGREEMENT
without prior written consent of the other party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, either party may assign this AGREEMENT in its entirety, without consent of the other party, in
connection with a merger, acquisition, corporate reorganization, or sale of its assets.

11. Cooperative Purchasing. CONSULTANT and CLIENT agree that other public agencies may purchase goods
and services under this solicitation or contract at their own cost and without CONSULTANT or CLIENT incurring
any financial or legal liability for such purchases.

12. Governing Law. This AGREEMENT shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of California without resort to any jurisdiction’s conflicts of law, rules or doctrines.

Submitted by:
Municipal Code Corporation
By: Jrecire sdhlt e

Title:  Brian Gilday - Preside ebsite Division

Accepted by:

By:
Title:

Date:

-94-



ITEM 12.e.






ITEM 12.e.

STAFF REPORT
7/10/2019
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager
SUBJECT: Approve a Community Based Grant to The Bianca Rae Foundation in the Amount

of $1,000.00 to Support its Rae of Hope Retreats for Middle School Children

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council consider authorizing a Community Based Grant to The
Bianca Rae Foundation in the amount of $1,000 to support its Rae of Hope Retreats for middle
school children.

BACKGROUND:

The Community Based Grant Program was established in 2010 and allows the City of Coachella
to offer financial assistance to local nonprofit organizations, schools, youth-serving
organizations, and other community-based organizations that provide essential services,
programs and activities to residents in Coachella. Applicant organizations are only eligible to
submit one application for consideration each fiscal year and must be legally established with
non-profit or tax-exempt status, be based in the Coachella Valley, or provide direct service to
Coachella residents. Approval of grant funds does not constitute a precedent for grant allocations
in subsequent years. All CBG grants are reimbursement grants to ensure that applicants are
meeting their stated goals. The FY 19-20 budget includes an allocation of $15,000 for the
Community Based Grant Program.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The Bianca Rae Foundation is a nonprofit organization established in 2013 with a mission to
serve as a resource of funding, knowledge, and empowerment for the socially disadvantaged, the
under-served, and all animals. Through its endeavors, The Bianca Rae Foundation attempts to
make the world a better place through thought, deed, and action, and to encourage people to do
the same. The Bianca Rae Foundation is requesting grant funding support to enable the
organization to offer two “Rae of Hope Retreats” —one for girls and one for boys. The Rae of
Hope Retreat is an exciting opportunity for middle school children from around the Coachella
Valley to learn about leadership, morals, and overcoming adversity to achieve their goals. This
one-day event began in 2014 and has grown each year to a number currently exceeding 1000
kids. The retreat has been led by the women and men of KESQ News Channel 3, who are
excited to share their own experiences of insecurity and bullying, demonstrating that nothing can
stand between them and their dreams.

-97-



ITEM 12.e.

ALTERNATIVES:

1. Award The Bianca Rae Foundation a Community Based Grant in the amount of $1,000.00.
2. Do not award The Bianca Rae Foundation a Community Based Grant.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Should the City Council approve the staff recommendation, the Community Based Grant account
will be reduced by $1,000.00 leaving $14,000.00 for the remainder of this fiscal year.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Copy of Community Based Grant Program Application Packet

-98-



ITEM 12.e.

CITY OF COACHELLA, CA
COMMUNITY BASED GRANT PROGRAM
APPLICATION FOR FUNDS REQUEST

Please Type Information and Print
Information entered in the provided spaces cannot be saved.

(Attach additional pages as needed, however applicants are encouraged to be brief.)

. Application Funding Cycle:

July 1,201 - June 30,20\ A\

. Total Amount Requested: $ 00O

If requesting waiver of City fees or charges, please indicate the City service for which the waiver
is being requested.

Proposed Program/Service of Funding Request B W

?}iofAz fjéjikﬁJA“:

4. Agencv/Or anization: 7. Official Contact Person:
Founalaon Name: T3 g~con Rao
S: Mallmg Address:

76 Box 10090 Title: ﬁ)u\ﬂoz%
City: Zip: ) v -
DOV Lo (A 426Is Telephone: [O% — 5 OS8O
6. Telephone:
70g-205180Y Fax:
Fax:

-99.



ITEM 12.e.

this organization have a non-profit status with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)? [
[INo[_](Attach documentation)

9. How long has this organization been in existence?
o Nears
10. Has the organjzation previously received funding from the City of Coachella?

[CIves Béoz
If yes, pléase identify the program/service, total prior grant allocation, and the fiscal year in
which the funds were received.

11. Is this request for a[__|New or&Existing program/service within the City?

12. What is the anticipated time frame to provide the proposed program/service and the

expenditure of the requested funds? - :
Sepembe 204 - Neovemise ¢ ZO\A

ibe bri i - - Hoge Cevent

13. Describe briefly how the requested funds will be used. P()u? Qfg Hay R

o o ¢ 4 (¢ m[\lcfc 0 SChoo\ \a’\d/g,ﬁw, ar O ab@gﬂy self~love
5 o Oy W \ U4 LA (ol
= —Lou\@” v me€hia  Sodedn s vnee . Tais yenr ) we il

% e bde — £50 GatAs 1A Celplepneec @ A5 DDTS ca Noevern
Ew e

ill the program/service Fequire additional'funding sources? If so, identify all funding sources

and provide the steps taken to acquire funding.

Nec. We nove  aised) §23c0 so 4o

15. If the program/service is planned to continue beyond the period provided by this grant, what
funding plans are there to sustain the program/service?

L %ﬁ@gﬂﬁhfafcyw@fcyamﬁ O
SPONSerSNPS Yz ‘

16. How will the proposed program/service serve City of Coachella residents? Will the proposed
program/service also serve non-Coachella residents? Please describe.

Aoy Oqonix of oo Fids oo
00 S % \/a\\€\> \ Ci%ko\\\\I Coacholla
p

17. Describe the characteristics of the clients the proposed program/service anticipates to serve (i.e.

agegroup,gender,_incomelevel, ethnicity, gtc.)\/ \\ \/)\d
_middle sVt Ceackhalla alley dn ren

‘ ~ eas
LI R S el Q- ol

18. Attach a proposed budget for requested funds.

Authorized Official: Title:  Founder

Signature:_ Bloawncar Rae Date:  June 27, 2019

-100-



ITEM 12.e.

Bianca Rae

The Bianca Rae Foundation's Rae of Hope Retreat is a one-day retreat for middle school
children to learn crucial life skills to help them become their best selves. When this program
started six years ago, it was solely geared toward young girls. We had so much demand to
expand it, so last year we held our first ever retreat for middle school boys. This year, fall of
2019, we are thrilled to hold TWO retreats for the first time ever: one for middle school girls and
one for middle school boys.

These retreats are truly life-changing for these children. They attend various breakout groups
full of specially designed programs to teach them about leadership, self-love, anti-bullying and
social media safety. We bring in experts in each field to discuss and formulate activities with the
kids. For example, in one group two entrepreneurs taught the boys about the ins and outs of
starting your own business and held a shark-tank style activity with them to help them think of
creative ideas and inventions. In another group at our girls retreat, we had each girl create a
vision board (using magazines, construction paper, scissors, glue etc.) about what they want to
be when they grow up, making sure to note the path they would take to get there. In these
breakout groups, we have had children open up about suicide, even come out as LGBT. We
have had little boys cling to football coaches as they broke down in tears because they don't
have a father. This is one day where children get to learn about ways to get involved in their
community, a foreign concept to many of them. They can learn tips and tricks to boost their self-
esteem and feel better about themselves. They hear from public figures who have been bullied
themselves about how they overcame those challenges. Kids get to learn about team-building
and working together through fun sports activities.

We have a very unique model at our retreats: get public figures and influential members of the
community who kids intrinsically look up to share this life-changing advice. It resonates
tremendously with youth. Many of these kids come from broken homes, with little access to
mentorship and leadership. We provide that for them with this annual retreat. The way these
children attach themselves to mentors they meet at this special day proves time and time again
that kids yearn for guidance just as much as we want them to have it. They want to be good,
they want to be at peace with themselves, but often external factors in their lives (unstable
family life, for example) deter them from that path.

It may seem like a simple concept, but there is no other program like this for middle school
children in Southern California. OQur success stories are profound, with one middle-school-aged
girl even going on to create her own business after attending our retreat. These kids are very
literally our future and we need to invest in helping them be the best humans they can be. That
is the goal of the Rae Of Hope Retreat.

Our costs are many, as we are having two retreats this year. For example, for the girls retreat,
the space is donated but we pay $20 a girl for food. We purchase backpacks for each girl and
buy supplies for all the breakout groups.

Our last girls retreat had 500 girls attend, with a 100-person waiting list. It is clear there is
demand for these kids, and we are doing our best to deliver on that. Any help would truly make
a difference and be very appreciated in our efforts to change these kids’ lives. You would be
playing an instrumental role in that!!

-101-



ITEM 12.e.

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Number:

pate: 'JUN 2720M 46-4309544
DLN:
17053023305004
THE BIANCA RAE FOUNDATION Contact Person:
C/O BIANCA GOUTOS CUSTOMER SERVICE ID# 31954
35751 GATEWAY DR STE K-1120 Contact Telephone Number:
PALM DESERT, CA 92211 (877) 829-5500

Accounting Period Ending:
December 31

Public Charity Status:
170(b} (1) (A} (vi)}

Form 930 Required:
Yes

Effective Date of Exemption:
December 23, 2013

Contribution Deductibility:
Yes

Addendum Applies:
No

Dear Applicant:

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax
under section 501{c){3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive
tax deductible bequests, deviges, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

organizations exempt under section S01(c)(3) of the Code are further classified
as either public charities or private foundations. We determined that you are
a public charity under the Code section(s) listed in the heading of this
letter.

Please see enclosed Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c) (3) Public
Charities, for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an
exempt organization.

Sincerely,

Director, Exempt Organizations

Enclosure: Publication 4221-PC
Letter 947

-102-




ITEM 12.e.

Bianca Rae Foundation

BUDGET 2019 - ROH
January - December 2019

TOTAL
Revenue
4000 Revenue from direct contributions
4010 Individual contributions 2,500.00
4020 Corporate contributions 33,000.00
Total 4000 Revenue from direct contributions 35,500.00
5100 Revenue from program-related sales &
fees ’
5180 Program service fees 500.00
Total 5100 Revenue from program-related 500.00
sales & fees
Total Revenue $36,000.00
GROSS PROFIT $36,000.00
Expenditures

8100 Nonpersonnel expenses

8110 Supplies ; 200.00
Total 8100 Nonpersonnel expenses 200.00
8500 Other expenses

8520 Insurance - non-employee related 100.00

8555 Merchant/CC processing fees 400.00
Total 8500 Other expenses 500.00
8700 Other program expense

8710 Program expense - Food/Hospitality 17,100.00

8720 Program expense - Transportation 4,500.00

8730 Program expense - Decor 800.00

8740 Program expense - Gifts/Awards 11,200.00

8790 Program Expense - Other 1,700.00
Total 8700 Other program expense 35,300.00

Total Expenditures $36,000.00
NET OPERATING REVENUE $0.00
NET REVENUE $0.00
Thursday, June 6, 2019 07:40 AM GMT-7 11

-103-



ITEM 12.e.

Bianca Rae Foundation

BUDGET 2019

January - December 2019

TOTAL
Revenue
4000 Revenue from direct contributions
4010 Individual contributions 8,000.00
4020 Corporate contributions 58,200.00
Total 4000 Revenue from direct 66,200.00
contributions
4200 Revenue from non-government grants
4210 Corporate/business grants 2,000.00
Total 4200 Revenue from non-government 2,000.00
grants
5100 Revenue from program-related sales &
fees
5180 Program service fees 500.00
Total 5100 Revenue from program-related 500.00
sales & fees
5300 Revenue from investments
5310 Interest-savings/short-term 25.00
investments
Total 5300 Revenue from investments 25.00
Total Revenue $68,725.00
GROSS PROFIT $68,725.00
Expenditures
7000 Grants & direct assistance expense
7020 Grants and donations to other 3,000.00
organizations
Total 7000 Grants & direct assistance 3,000.00
expense
7500 Contract service expenses
7510 Fundraising expense 7,000.00
7520 Accounting expense 2,000.00
7540 Professional fees - other 3,900.00
Total 7500 Contract service expenses 12,900.00
8100 Nonpersonnel expenses
8110 Supplies 700.00
8140 Postage and shipping 300.00
8190 Internet/web/hosting fees 1,000.00
Total 8100 Nonpersonnel expenses 2,000.00
8200 Facility & equipment expenses
8210 Rent, parking, other occupancy 960.00
Total 8200 Facility & equipment expenses 960.00
8300 Travel, meeting, M&E expenses
8350 Meals & Entertainment 1,500.00

Thursday, June 6, 2019 07:49 AM GMT-7

-104-

12



Total 8300 Travel, meeting, M&E expenses
8500 Other expenses
8520 Insurance - non-employee related
8530 Membership dues - organization
8555 Merchant/CC processing fees
8570 Advertising/marketing expense
Total 8500 Other expenses
8600 Business expenses
8650 Taxes - other
8685 Permits, licenses
Total 8600 Business expenses
8700 Other program expense
8710 Program expense - Food/Hospitality
8720 Program expense - Transportation
8730 Program expense - Decor
8740 Program expense - Gifts/Awards
8790 Program Expense - Other
Total 8700 Other program expense

Total Expendituras
NET OPERATING REVENUE
NET REVENUE

TOTAL
1,500.00

400.00
300.00
500.00
3,500.00
4,700.00

200.00
100.00
300.00

17,300.00
7,500.00
800.00
17,700.00
2,200.00
45,500.00

$70,860.00
$-2,135.00
$ -2,135.00

Thursday, June 6, 2019 07:49 AM GMT-7

-105-

ITEM 12.e.

212



ITEM 12..;.

1 N

Gll. ' UYS’9
RAE OF HOPE RETREAT

FOR THE FIRST TIME EVER! GIRLS RETREAT BOYS RETREAT
The Bianca Rae Foundation will offer Saturday, 9/21/19 Saturday, 11/2/19
TWO Rae of Hope Retreats in the Rancho Mirage, CA Rancho Mirage, CA

Coachella Valley this year - one for
middle school girls and one for middle
school boys!

Reach out to our Registration Coordinator

biancaraefoundation.org

Lisa@biancaraefoundation.org with questions!

-106-



ITEM 12.e.

The Westin Mission Hills Resort
71-333 Dinah Shore Dr

®
Rancho Mirage, CA 92270
United States
760-328-5955

HOTELS & RESORTS 800-335-3545

ADVANCE DEPOSIT RECEIPT

Bianca Rae Foundation Reservation: 1963800
P.O. Box 10096 Arrival Date: 09-21-2019

Departure Date: 09-21-2019
Palm Desert, CA 92255 Receipt No: 2990

United States Of America

Date Description Card # Card Holder Amount

03-13-2019 Check 2000.00
Total: 2000.00
User ID: CAHARB26

ADVANCE DEPOSIT RECEIPT
Page 1 of 1

-107-






ITEM 12.1.






ITEM 12 1.

STAFF REPORT
7/10/2019
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrROM: Maritza Martinez; Public Works Director
SUBJECT: Authorize Coachella Library facility use rental permit fee waiver for the Cesar

Chavez Elementary School Mariachi Band Juvenil Program.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize Coachella Library facility use rental permit fee waiver for the Cesar Chavez
Elementary School Mariachi Band Juvenil Program.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The Cesar Chavez Elementary School has a Mariachi Program that is in need of practice space
for five weeks. They have identified a need for ten rentals, two hours each during the months of
July and August. This program is designed grow and sustain the vitality of their Mariachi
Program and students through the summer. The facility use request is for one meeting room for
ten rentals; two hours each rental.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Approval of the recommended action would waive $590.00 in facility use fees for the requested
permitted use of the Coachella Library.

Attachment:
Program Flyer

-111-






ITEM 12 1.

MARIACHI BAND JUVENIL

Offers guitar and violin lessons for
the summer 2019

Where? At the Coachella Public Library

Time?  Tuesdays 10-12 a.m. : Guitar lessons
Thursdays 2-4 p.m. : Violin lessons

When? From June 18- August 13, 2019

Dates: Tuesdays

Thursdays
6/18 6/ 20
7/ 02 7/ 03
7/ 09 7/11
7/16 7/18
7/23 7/25
7/30 8/01
8/06 8/08
8713
Instructor: Hernan Marquez

No fees for students

Requirements: Guitar lessons must attend Tuesdays only
Violin lessons must attend Thursdays only

IT Interested in both, must attend both days

-113-






ITEM 12.¢.






ITEM 12.g.

STAFF REPORT
7/10/2019
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager
SUBJECT: Approve a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Youth Sports Association in

the Amount of $1,000 to Support its Women's Soccer Team

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council consider awarding a Community Based Grant to the
Coachella Youth Sports Association in the Amount of $1,000 to support its women's soccer
team.

BACKGROUND:

The Community Based Grant Program was established in 2010 and allows the City of Coachella
to offer financial assistance to local nonprofit organizations, schools, youth-serving
organizations, and other community-based organizations that provide essential services,
programs and activities to residents in Coachella. Applicant organizations are only eligible to
submit one application for consideration each fiscal year and must be legally established with
non-profit or tax-exempt status, be based in the Coachella Valley, or provide direct service to
Coachella residents. Approval of grant funds does not constitute a precedent for grant allocations
in subsequent years. All CBG grants are reimbursement grants to ensure that applicants are
meeting their stated goals. The FY 19-20 budget includes an allocation of $15,000 for the
Community Based Grant Program.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The Coachella Valley Youth Sports Association is a nonprofit organization established in 2009
and integrates Coachella Valley youth players from communities like Coachella, Mecca,
Thermal, North Shore and Indio. With the collaborative help of parents and coaches, the
association takes a very hands-on approach in working and training its players. Grant funds from
the City will help the association support its women’s soccer teams purchase uniforms, soccer
equipment and other necessary items needed for the sport.

-117-



ITEM 12.g.

ALTERNATIVES:

1. Approve a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Youth Sports Association in the
amount of $1,000 to support its women’s soccer team
2. Do not approve a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Youth Sports Association

FISCAL IMPACT:

If the City Council approves the staff recommendation, the Community Based Grant account will
be reduced by $1,000.00 leaving $13,000.00 for the remainder of the fiscal year.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Copy of Community Based Grant Application Packet

-118-



ITEM 12.g.

CITY OF COACHELLA, CA
COMMUNITY BASED GRANT PROGRAM
APPLICATION FOR FUNDS REQUEST

Please Type Information and Print
Information entered in the provided spaces cannot be saved.

(Attach additional pages as needed, however applicants are encouraged to be brief.)

. Application Funding Cycle:
i9
July 1,20 %8 - June 30, 20_5 R¢

. Total Amount Requested: $ [/, 200

*Amount requested cannot exceed $1,000

If requesting waiver of Cit